NAVAJO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Fern Benally ¢« Alberto L. Peshlakai ¢« Jason E. Whiting * Daryl Seymore * Dawnafe Whitesinger
“We are Navajo County”

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND AGENDA

Tuesday, March 11, 2025
NAVAJO COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL COMPLEX
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' CHAMBERS
100 EAST CODE TALKERS DRIVE
HOLBROOK, AZ 86025
One or more supervisors may attend telephonically

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(H), the public body will have physical access to the meeting place one (1) hour prior to the start of
the meeting. The Board may vote to meet in a closed executive session to discuss certain matters and for legal advice on any item
as indicated on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). Items on the agenda may be considered out of order at
the Chairperson's discretion. A copy of the agenda background material provided to the Board, except items to be considered in the
executive session, is available for public inspection at the Navajo County website, www.navajocountyaz.gov

WATCH THE MEETING LIVE AT: www.navajocountyaz.gov/660

All public comments will need to be made in person or in writing. Written comments will be received by the Clerk of the Board's
office twenty-four (24) hours prior to the Board meeting, at melissa.buckley(@navajocountyaz.gov. Persons with disabilities who
need accommodation to attend or participate in the meeting may contact the Clerk of the Board’s office at least forty-eight (48)
hours prior to the meeting, so accommodation can be arranged.

“NOTICE TO PARENTS AND LEGAL GUARDIANS: Parents and legal guardians have the right to consent before Navajo County makes a video or voice recording
of a minor child, pursuant to A.R.S. § 1-602(A)(9). The Navajo County Board of Supervisors' regular meetings are recorded and may be viewed on Navajo County’s
website and social media pages. If you permit your child to attend/participate in a televised Navajo County Board of Supervisors meeting, a recording will be made, and
your child’s picture may be posted on Navajo County’s social media pages. You may exercise your right not to consent by not allowing your child to attend/participate
in the meeting.”

9:00 a.m. Call To Order: Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

1. CONSENT AGENDA: These items are considered to be routine or administrative in nature
and will be approved in a single motion. A Board member may request for any item to be
removed from the consent agenda and considered on the regular agenda:

a. Minutes: February 25, 2025 BOS Meeting and February 26, 2025 BOS Special Meeting
b. Constable Reports: Show Low Precinct #5, February 2025
c. Amendment No. 1 to HDR Engineering, Inc. Contract B23-02-015, Task 3 Winslow Levee

Survey, extending the contract term by 6 months

d. Amendment No. 2 to the Juvenile Diversion Program Contract #B23-01-003 extends the
contract term through June 30, 2025

e. Contracts signed by County Manager pursuant to Board of Supervisors Resolution: Sentinel
(Appendix A) to Master Service Agreement


http://www.navajocountyaz.gov/
https://www.navajocountyaz.gov/660
mailto:melissa.buckley@navajocountyaz.gov?subject=Call%20to%20the%20Public

Appointment of Kasheena Susan Miles as Democrat Precinct Committee members for their
respective precincts

Sympathy Letters: Alysa Boisvert (NCSO); Evelyn Marez (retired); Gloria Hatton (retired);
and Danny Lewis (Public Works)

NAVAJO COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES DISTRICT: Board of Directors
Session:

REGULAR AGENDA:

PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of the amendment of Ordinance 01-19 Outdoor Fire
Ordinance.

Presented By: Catrina Jenkins

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES:

Consideration of award of contract number B24-12-013 Employee Benefits Consultant to The
Mahoney Group.

Presented By: Eric Scott

PUBLIC WORKS:

Consideration of award of contract #B25-01-010 Supply of Various Roadway Materials to
Brimhall Sand, Rock & Building Materials Inc., WW Clyde Co., Perkins Aggregates, Inc.,
Perkins Cinders, Inc. and Schuck Development effective March 28, 2025.

Presented By: Madhav Mundle

NAVAJO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT: Board of Directors Session:

REGULAR AGENDA:

Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Taylor for their request
for financial assistance for the Rail Road Grade drainage project in the amount of $68,000.

Presented By: Will Flake

ASSESSOR:

EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) for the Board to receive legal
advice from its attorney regarding hiring of outside legal counsel, specifically Jeffrey Messing
and Jim Ball of the firm Ball, Santin & McLeran, P.L.C., to represent Navajo County in
Walmart's tax appeal (TX-2024-000400) regarding the valuation of its property located in
Taylor, Arizona.

Presented By: Jason Moore/Michael Montandon



b. RECONVENE: Consideration of hiring of outside legal counsel, specifically Jeffrey
Messing and Jim Ball of the firm Ball, Santin & McLeran, P.L.C., to represent Navajo
County in Walmart's tax appeal (TX-2024-000400) regarding the valuation of its property
located in Taylor, Arizona.

Presented By: Jason Moore/Michael Montandon

6. COUNTY BUSINESS UPDATE: Report from County Manager, County Attorney and
Board members.

7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Individuals may address the Board on any relevant issue for up
to 3 minutes. At the close of the call to the public, Board members may not respond to any
comments but may respond to criticism, ask staff to review a matter or ask that a matter be
placed on a future agenda.

8. ADJOURN

Dated: March 6, 2025 NAVAJO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Posted: 9:05 a.m. By: MWB Wﬂdﬂ/ ) M&f

Melissa W. Buckley - Clerk of the Board



Board of Supervisors Regular

Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Draft Minues

Submitted By: Leah Thomas, Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Board of Supervisors

Motion before the Board:
Minutes: February 25, 2025 BOS Meeting and February 26, 2025 BOS Special Meeting

Background:
Attachments
2.25.2025 DRAFT Minutes
2.26.2025 DRAFT Minutes
Form Review
Form Started By: Leah Thomas Started On: 02/24/2025 11:59 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/24/2025



NAVAJO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MINUTES
Tuesday, February 25, 2025
Present: Fern Benally, Supervisor District | (appearing virtually); Alberto

Peshlakai, Supervisor District Il; Jason Whiting, Chairman; Daryl
Seymore, Supervisor District IV; Dawnafe Whitesinger, Vice-Chair

Staff Bryan Layton, County Manager; Brad Carlyon, County Attorney; Melissa
Attendance: Buckley, Clerk of the Board

9:01 a.m. Call To Order: Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Supervisor
Daryl Seymore.

CONSENT AGENDA:

a. Minutes: February 11, 2025
Clerk of Superior Court Report, January 2025

C. Constable Reports: Snowflake Precinct #3, January 2025, Kayenta
Precinct #4, January 2025; Show Low Precinct #5, December 2024 &
January 2025; Pinetop-Lakeside Precinct #6, January 2025

d. Justice Court Reports: Holbrook Precinct #1, Winslow Precinct #2,
Snowflake Precinct #3, Kayenta Precinct #4, Show Low Precinct #5,
Pinetop-Lakeside Precinct #6, January 2025

e. Contracts signed by County Manager pursuant to Board of Supervisors
Resolution: Addendum to the Administrative Services Agreement between
Marpai Administrators, LLC and Navajo County

f. Certificate of Removal and Abatement Purging Record of Tax, Penalty

and Interest on Personal Property Taxes, pursuant to A.R.S. §42-19118
and §42-18353

g. Certification of the E-2 Environmental Review Record, Documentation of
Exemption for the Joseph City Pedestrian Improvement Project
h. Appointment of Jodi Christine Poole as Republican Precinct

Committeeman for their respective precincts

i. Approval for the appointments of Sheryl Eaton, Juliet Austin, Sally R.
Bitsuie, Angela Bradley Joe and Marcie Ann Greenberg as Democrat
Precinct Committeemen for their respective precincts

- Adoption of Resolution Number 05-25, canceling the election on May
20, 2025, for White Mountain Lakes Special Road District #2 and
appointing the candidate(s) or deeming the position vacant

K. Approval and Acceptance of the FY25-26 ACJC National Criminal History
Improvement Grant #NCHIP-24-26-006 for criminal history records and
related information

10f4



Sympathy Letter: Michael and Linda Sandoval-

Supervisor Seymore made a motion to authorize the Chairman to sign
the items in the consent agenda; motion seconded by Supervisor
Peshlakai. Vote unanimous approving the motion.

Supervisor Peshlakai made a motion to enter into the Navajo County
Jail District Board of Directors Session, motion seconded by Supervisor
Seymore. Vote unanimous approving the motion.

NAVAJO COUNTY JAIL DISTRICT: Board of Directors Session:

CONSENT AGENDA:

Amendment No. 3 extending Navajo County Jail Medical and
Psychological Services Contract with Wexford Health Sources, Inc. for
one additional year (March 8, 2025, through March 7, 2026), and
modifying the scope of services and billable rates

Amendment No. 1 to the Navajo County Jail Residential Substance Abuse
Treatment Program Contract #824-10-014 replaces Phase 1 pricing with
Phase 2 pricing:

Supervisor Seymore made a motion to authorize the Chairman to sign
the items in the consent agenda; motion seconded by Supervisor
Peshlakai. Vote unanimous approving the motion.

Supervisor Peshlakai made a motion to leave the Navajo County Jail
District Board of Directors Session and enter into the Navajo County
Public Health Services District Board of Directors Session, motion
seconded by Supervisor Seymore. Vote unanimous approving the
motion.

NAVAJO COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES DISTRICT: Board of Directors
Session:

CONSENT AGENDA:

1.

Memorandum of Understanding between Navajo County Public Health
Services District (NCPHSD) and CAN Community Health, Inc. for
Community HIV/STD testing :

Supervisor Seymore made a motion to authorize the Chairman to sign
the items in the consent agenda; motion seconded by Vice-Chair
Whitesinger. Vote unanimous approving the motion.

Vice-Chair Whitesinger made a motion to return to regular session,

motion seconded by Supervisor Peshlakai. Vote unanimous approving
the motion.

20f4



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

a. PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of a Liquor License for Phaedra Ann
Snyder for Miss Bo's Mercantile located at 2377 Bison Ranch Tralil,
Overgaard, AZ:

Melissa Buckley stated that the application as sent to the Sheriff's Office,
Treasurer’s Office, Health Department and Planning and Development
and that all departments responded with approval. She indicated that the
twenty-day posting has been completed as required. She stated that the
applicant is present.

Chairman Whiting opened the Public Hearing. There being no
comments, the Public Hearing was closed.

Supervisor Seymore noted that he did have a discussion with the
Applicant prior to the meeting to get clarification regarding a portion of the
application.

Supervisor Seymore made a motion to approve a Liquor License for
Phaedra Ann Snyder for Miss Bo's Mercantile located at 2377 Bison
Ranch Trail, Overgaard, AZ, motion seconded by Vice-Chair
Whitesinger. Vote unanimous approving the motion.

COUNTY BUSINESS UPDATE: Report from County Manager, County Attorney
and Board members :

Supervisor Seymore spoke about meeting with Superintendent of Schools,
noting that they discussed putting together some “GO” buckets and getting
NARCAN in the classrooms to help make safer environment. He spoke about
the significance of the Easter holiday and the sacrifice that Christ made,
indicating that we should start a new tradition by saying He has Risen like we
say Merry Christmas. He stated that he hoped that we can become more
Christ-like and be kind to everyone.

Vice-Chair Whitesinger reminded everyone about the White Mountain Wildfire
Preparedness Expo on March 29, 2025, and invited everyone to attend.
Chairman Whiting thanked Vice-Chair Whitesinger for her leadership on the
Wildfire Preparedness Expo. He indicated that the fire season is a concern for
everyone and that the Expo will allow citizens to know how they can do their
part.

CALL TO THE PUBLIC:
There was no call to the Pubilic.

ADJOURN: 9:11 a.m. meeting adjourned.

30f4



APPROVED:

Jason Whiting, Chairman
Navajo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Melissa W. Buckley, Clerk
Navajo County Board of Supervisors

DATED: March 11, 2025

4 0of4



NAVAJO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MINUTES
Wednesday, February 26, 2025

Present: Fern Benally, Supervisor District |; Alberto Peshlakai, Supervisor District

Staff

II; Jason Whiting, Chairman; Daryl Seymore, Supervisor District IV;
Dawnafe Whitesinger, Vice-Chair, all appearing virtually

Brad Carlyon, County Attorney (Virtual); Brandt Clark, Deputy County

Attendance: Attorney (Virtual); Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board; Catrina Jenkins,

Emergency Management Manager

11:02 a.m. Call To Order: Chairman Whiting called the meeting to order.

NAVAJO COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES DISTRICT: Board of Directors
Session:

Consideration of a Declaration of Emergency due to extreme fire danger
and to enact Section 6 of the Navajo County Ordinance 01-19 Emergency
Fire Restrictions, to enter into Stage 1 fire restrictions beginning Friday
February 28, 2025 at 8:00 a.m. :

Catrina Jenkins stated that the White Mountain Fire Coordination Group
has been in discussions regarding the forest conditions and other indices,
and that based on the current drought and wildfire risk, they would request
an emergency be declared, that the Open Fire Ordinance be enacted and
that Stage One restrictions be put in place effective Friday, February 28,
2025, at 8:00 a.m., which will allow everyone to get their processes in
place.

Supervisor Seymore made a motion to enter into the Navajo County
Public Health Services District Board of Directors Session, motion seconded
by Vice-Chair Whitesinger. Vote unanimous approving the motion.

Supervisor Seymore requested that Stage One Restrictions be defined.

Ms. Jenkins stated that Stage One Restrictions prohibit the building,
maintaining, attending or use of fires, campfires or stoves, including
charcoal, wood or such debris, except in areas designated for those
devices, such as a designated campground or your backyard where it's
cleared of all debris. She indicated that smoking in the open is not allowed;
it's only allowed in an enclosed vehicle, parking lot or inside a building.

She further indicated that it prohibits the use of consumer fireworks, as well
as the use of tracer rounds ammunition or explosive targets. She stated
that during restrictions all open burn permits are suspended, until the
restrictions are lifted.

Supervisor Seymore made a motion to approve a Declaration of
Emergency due to extreme fire danger and to enact Section 6 of the Navajo
County Ordinance 01-19 Emergency Fire Restrictions, to enter into Stage 1
fire restrictions beginning Friday February 28, 2025 at 8:00 a.m., motion

10f2



seconded by Supervisor Peshlakai.

Supervisor Benally requested that the Declaration be read.
Ms. Jenkins read the proposed Declaration.

Vote unanimous approving the motion.

Vice-Chair Whitesinger made a motion to return to regular session,

motion seconded by Supervisor Benally. Vote unanimous approving the
motion.

ADJOURN: 11:11 a.m. meeting adjourned.

APPROVED: DATED: March 11, 2025

Jason Whiting, Chairman
Navajo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Melissa W. Buckley, Clerk
Navajo County Board of Supervisors

20of 2



Board of Supervisors Regular 1.c.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Task 3 Winslow Levee Survey No. B23-02-015 Amendment No. 1

Submitted For: Madhav Mundle, Public Works Director

Submitted By: Kolton Root, Sr. Procurement Officer

Department:  Public Works

Motion before the Board:

Amendment No. 1 to HDR Engineering, Inc. Contract B23-02-015, Task 3 Winslow Levee
Survey, extending the contract term by 6 months

Background:

On April 9, 2024, the Board of Supervisors approved HDR Engineering, Inc. contract B23-02-015, Task
3 Winslow Levee Survey. The Board subsequently approved a revised contract with minor modifications
on May 14, 2024. Amendment No. 1 extends the contract term by 6 months to allow for the work to be
completed. The contract sum is not modified.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Jeanine Carruthers Jeanine Carruthers 02/26/2025 02:22 PM

Brandt Clark Brandt Clark 02/26/2025 03:06 PM

Public Works Director Madhav Mundle 02/26/2025 03:47 PM

Form Started By: Kolton Root Started On: 02/25/2025 09:43 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/26/2025



NAVAJO
COUNTY

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
“Contract No. B23-02-015, Task 3 Winslow Levee Survey”

Olivier Mirza, Sr. Project Manager
HDR Engineering, Inc.

20 E. Thomas Road, Suite 2500
Phoenix, AZ 85012-3118

In accordance with the provisions of the above-referenced contract, the terms and

conditions are hereby amended as follows:

1. CONTRACT EXTENSION: The above contract is hereby extended March 26, 2025
through September 25, 2025, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise

provided in the contract.

Except as expressly amended herein, the above-referenced contract is hereby ratified and

reaffirmed.

Please signify your acceptance of this amendment by signing and returning this amendment
to the address listed below, attention Kolton Root, as soon as possible.

Contractor hereby acknowledges receipt of
and agreement with this amendment. A
sighed copy must be filed with Navajo
County. If you need to make changes to your
address, correct the address above and
initial.

Signature Date

Typed/Printed Name and Title

The above referenced Contract
Amendment is hereby executed this 11"
day of March 2025, at Holbrook, Arizona.

Chairman, Navajo County Board of
Supervisors

Navajo County Public Works, P.O. BOX 668, Holbrook, AZ 86025
Phone: (928) 524-4100 Fax: (928) 524-4122




Board of Supervisors Regular 1.d.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Juvenile Diversion Program No. B23-01-003 Amendment No. 2

Submitted For: Brad Carlyon, County Attorney

Submitted By: Kolton Root, Sr. Procurement Officer

Department:  County Attorney

Motion before the Board:

Amendment No. 2 to the Juvenile Diversion Program Contract #B23-01-003 extends the contract term
through June 30, 2025

Background:

On March 14, 2023, the Board of Supervisors awarded Contract B23-01-003 to Advent Financial
Systems, LLC. for the Juvenile Diversion Program. This contract has worked well for Navajo County.
The Juvenile Diversion Program contract may be renewed for up to four additional one-year periods or
portions thereof. This would be the second renewal. Both parties are in agreement to extend the contract
through June 30, 2025 and maintain the same terms. Staff recommends that the contract be extended from
March 14, 2025, to June 30, 2025.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2
Consent - County Attorney's Office

Consent - Contractor

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Jeanine Carruthers Jeanine Carruthers 02/26/2025 04:28 PM

Brandt Clark Brandt Clark 02/27/2025 09:16 AM

County Attorney Brad Carlyon 02/27/2025 11:14 AM

Form Started By: Kolton Root Started On: 02/25/2025 02:51 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/27/2025



NAVAJO
COUNTY

AMENDMENT NO. 2
JUVENILE DIVERSION PROGRAM
Contract No. B23-01-003

Advent Financial Services, LLC
400 Ring Road, Suite 171
Elizabethtown, KY 42701

In accordance with the provisions of the above-referenced contract, the terms and

conditions are hereby amended as follows:

1. CONTRACT EXTENSION: The above contract is hereby extended March 14, 2025
through June 30, 2025, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise

provided in the contract.

Except as expressly amended herein, the above-referenced contract is hereby ratified and

reaffirmed.

Please signify your acceptance of this amendment by signing and returning this amendment
to the address listed below, attention Kolton Root, as soon as possible.

Contractor hereby acknowledges receipt of
and agreement with this amendment. A
sighed copy must be filed with Navajo
County. If you need to make changes to your
address, correct the address above and
initial.

Signature Date

Typed/Printed Name and Title

The above referenced Contract
Amendment is hereby executed this 11"
day of March 2025, at Holbrook, Arizona.

Chairman, Navajo County Board of
Supervisors

Navajo County Public Works, P.O. BOX 668, Holbrook, AZ 86025
Phone: (928) 524-4100 Fax: (928) 524-4122




Kolton Root

From: Lynda Young

Sent: Monday, February 3, 2025 1:11 PM

To: Kolton Root

Cc: Jeanine Carruthers; Jeanne Boyce

Subject: RE: Expire/Renew: Juvenile Diversion Program (Advent Financial Systems - Contract

#B23-01-003)

Hi Kolton -
Yes, please renew the contract.

Lynda Young | Office Manager, County Attorney’s Office
We are Navajo County

100 East Code Talkers Drive

P. O.Box 668 | Holbrook AZ 86025

pone I | - I

NavajoCountyAZ.gov | facebook/NavajoCounty
Teamwork | Accountability | Integrity | Excellence | Innovation

From: Kolton Root

Sent: Monday, February 3, 2025 1:01 PM

To: Lynda Young

Cc: Jeanine Carruthers

Subject: Expire/Renew: Juvenile Diversion Program (Advent Financial Systems - Contract #B23-01-003)

Good afternoon Lynda,
The subject-referenced contract is set to expire on March 13, 2025.

Sﬁlould th(iis be renewed for another year? The contract allows for up to (4) 1-year renewals, and this would be
the second.

Thank you,

KOLTON ROOT
Sr. Procurement Officer
Navajo County | Public Works

Direct

est Public Works Drive

.0. Box a1
Holbrook, AZ 86025
Teamwork — Accountability — Integrity — Excellence — Innovation



G Outlook

RE: FW: Renewal Inquiry: Navajo County Juvenile Diversion Program Contract #B23-01-003

Date Tue 2/25/2025 10:11 AM
To Kolton Root

Cc  Jeanne Boyce Jeanine Carruthers_

Good Morning Kolton —
Advent has agreed to honor the same contract through June 30.

Lynda Young | Office Manager, County Attorney’s Office
We are Navajo County

100 East Code Talkers Drive

P. O. Box 668 | Holbrook AZ 86025

phone [N | - I

NavajoCountyAZ.gov | facebook/NavajoCounty,

Teamwork | Accountability | Integrity | Excellence | Innovation

From: Kolton Root
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 3:40 PM
To: Lynda Young
Cc: Jeanne Boyce Jeanine Carruthers

Subject: RE: FW: Renewal Inquiry: Navajo County Juvenile Diversion Program Contract #B23-01-003

Hi Lynda,

Thank you for the update. Please note that the deadline for agenda item submissions to the 3/11/25 BOS
meeting is this Friday at noon.

Respectfully,

KOLTON ROOT
Sr. Procurement Officer
Navajo County | Public Works

From: Lynda Young
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 1:23 PM
To: Kolton Root
Cc: Jeanne Boyce Jeanine Carruthers

Subject: RE: FW: Renewal Inquiry: Navajo County Juvenile Diversion Program Contract #B23-01-003

Kolton —
We haven't received anything from Advent. I'll reach out to them.

Lynda Young | Office Manager, County Attorney’s Office
We are Navajo County

100 East Code Talkers Drive

P. O. Box 668 | Holbrook AZ 86025

Phone || | Fa

NavajoCountyAZ.gov | facebook/NavajoCounty

Teamwork | Accountability | Integrity | Excellence | Innovation




Board of Supervisors Regular l.e.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Sentinel - Appendix A to Contract

Submitted For: Don Wells, IT Senior Network Engineer

Submitted By: Leah Thomas, Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department:  Information Technology

Motion before the Board:

Contracts signed by County Manager pursuant to Board of Supervisors Resolution: Sentinel (Appendix
A) to Master Service Agreement

Background:
Sentinel Appendix A to Master Service Agreement

Attachments
Cisco Addendum A to Contract

Form Review

Form Started By: Leah Thomas Started On: 02/24/2025 11:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 02/24/2025



Cisco Catalyst 9200 Switches
Contract # 019499
NCPA (TD Synnex) #01-170 (for Commodity Products) / Exp. 12/31/2026

Prepared by:

Sentinel Technologies, Inc

Jacob Thiede
jthiede@sentinel.com

Prepared for:

Navajo County

Don Wells
don.wells@navajocountyaz.gov



‘) SENTINEL

) Appendix A

This Appendix A is governed by the Master Services Agreement by and between Sentinel Technologies, Inc., (Contractor) with
principal offices at 2550 Warrenville Road, Downers Grove, lllinois 60515, and Navajo County with principal offices at Po Box
668 Holbrook, AZ 86025.

XY Hardware/Software Only

Hardware/Software only purchase of items listed in the Pricing Summary. No installation or professional services provided.

Hardware/Software
Product Description (0] Price Ext. Price
Switch - C9200L-24P-4X-E - Wired - Gigabit Ethernet - 2GB RAM - 4GB Flash Memory - 5 $1,589.00 $7,945.00
Routing Protocol RIP, OSPF, IS-IS - Power Supply - Enhanced Limited Lifetime Warranty
NORTH AMERICA AC TYPE A POWER CABLE 5 $0.00 $0.00
Catalyst 9200 Blank Stack Module 10 $0.00 $0.00
RUBBER FEET FOR TABLE TOP SETUP 9200 and 9300 5 $0.00 $0.00
12-24 and 10-32 SCREWS FOR RACK INSTALLATION, QTY 4 5 $0.00 $0.00
1RU CABLE MANAGEMENT GUIDES 9200 and 9300 5 $0.00 $0.00
NETWORK PLUG-N-PLAY CONNECT FOR ZERO-TOUCH DEVICE DEPLOYMENT 5 $0.00 $0.00
Config 5 Power Supply Blank 5 $0.00 $0.00
CATALYST 9200L 48-PORT POE+, 4 X 10G, NETWORK ESSENTIALS 3 $2,743.00 $8,229.00
NORTH AMERICA AC TYPE A POWER CABLE 3 $0.00 $0.00
Catalyst 9200 Blank Stack Module 6 $0.00 $0.00
RUBBER FEET FOR TABLE TOP SETUP 9200 and 9300 3 $0.00 $0.00
12-24 and 10-32 SCREWS FOR RACK INSTALLATION, QTY 4 3 $0.00 $0.00
1RU CABLE MANAGEMENT GUIDES 9200 and 9300 3 $0.00 $0.00
NETWORK PLUG-N-PLAY CONNECT FOR ZERO-TOUCH DEVICE DEPLOYMENT 3 $0.00 $0.00
Config 5 Power Supply Blank 3 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal: $16,174.00

Confidential Information Property of Sentinel Technologies, Inc. 2



") SENTINEL

Licenses

Product Description Qty Price Ext. Price
Solution Subscriptions - Unless explicitly indicated otherwise within this contract, the below term for these subscription services will automatically renew,
absent at least ninety (90) days’ notice of cancelation by Customer before the start of the renewal term. For subscription services that do not automatically renew,
Customer must provide Sentinel with at least ninety (90) days’ notice of its intention to renew the services and shall hold Sentinel harmless from any service
interruption to result from the cessation of services due to Customer’s failure to provide timely notice as stated herein.

Initial Term: 36 Months | Requested Start Date: Upon Order | Billing Model: Prepaid | Renewal Term: Requote

C9200L CISCO DNA ESSENTIALS, 24-PORT TERM LICENSE 5 $0.00 $0.00
Cisco Digital Network Architecture Essentials - Term License (3 years) - 24 ports - for 5 $425.00 $2,125.00
P/N: C9200L-24P-AG-E-RF, C9200L-24P-4G-E-WS, C9200L-24P-4X-E-WS, C9200L-

24PXG4XE-RF

C9200L NETWORK ESSENTIALS, 24-PORT LICENSE 5 $0.00 $0.00
C9200L CISCO DNA ESSENTIALS, 48-PORT TERM LICENSE 3 $0.00 $0.00
Cisco Digital Network Architecture Essentials - Term License (3 years) - 48 ports - for 3 $780.00 $2,340.00
P/N: C9200L-48P-4X-E-WS, C9200L-48PXG-2Y-E, C9200L-48PXG-4X-E, C9200L-48T-4G-E

-WS

C9200L NETWORK ESSENTIALS, 48-PORT LICENSE 3 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal: $4,465.00

Support

Product Description Qty Price Ext. Price

Initial Term: 36 Months | Requested Start Date: Upon Order | Billing Model: Prepaid | Renewal Term: Requote

SNTC-8X5XNBD Catalyst 9200L 24-port PoE+, 4 x 10G, Ne 5 $928.00 $4,640.00
SNTC-8X5XNBD Catalyst 9200L 48-port PoE+, 4 x 10G, Ne 3 $1,565.00 $4,695.00
Subtotal: $9,335.00

Confidential Information Property of Sentinel Technologies, Inc. 3



‘) SENTINEL

Cisco Catalyst 9200 Switches

Prepared by: Prepared for: Contract Information:

Sentinel Technologies, Inc Navajo County Contract # 019499

Jacob Thiede Po Box 668 Version: 3

jthiede@sentinel.com Holbrook, AZ 86025 Delivery Date: 02/18/2025
Don Wells Expiration Date: 03/13/2025
+19285244407

don.wells@navajocountyaz.gov

Quote Summary

Description Amount
Hardware/Software $16,174.00
Licenses $4,465.00
Support $9,335.00
Estimated Tax: $1,946.25

Total: $31,920.25

Taxes, shipping, handling and other fees may apply. We reserve the right to cancel orders arising from pricing or other errors.

Terms and Conditions

By signing below, Customer agrees that the products and services being purchased through this contract are subject to the Sentinel
Technologies Terms and Conditions, as applicable, located at https://sentinel.com/Termsand-Conditions unless expressly provided herein or
otherwise addressed in a separate Agreement between the parties.

Invoice Terms
Hardware: Upon Shipment

Subscription/License: At the beginning of the contract - In Full

Payment Terms: Net 30

Sentinel Technologies, Inc Navajo County
Signature: Signature: ?>>Jlb(—
v =
Name: Robert Lenartowicz Name: %(\10\\/\ \_/C\\]Tbv\
\ \
Title: Chief Operating Officer Title: COU\/\J\_H Mo se -
\ 9
Date: 02/18/2025 Date: 2B 200

Confidential Information Property of Sentinel Technologies, Inc. 4


https://www.sentinel.com/terms-and-conditions
https://sentinel.com/Terms-and-Conditions
https://sentinel.com/Terms-and-Conditions
https://sentinel.com/Terms-and-Conditions
https://sentinel.com/Terms-and-Conditions
https://sentinel.com/Terms-and-Conditions
Mobile User


Board of Supervisors Regular 1. 1.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: DEM PC Appointment March 2025

Submitted By: Rayleen Richards, Elections Director

Department: Elections

Motion before the Board:

Appointment of Kasheena Susan Miles as Democrat Precinct Committee members for their respective
precincts

Background:
Appointment valid through Oct. 1, 2028.

16-822. Precinct committeemen; eligibility; vacancy; duties; term B. If the number of persons who file
nominating petitions for an election to fill precinct committeeman positions is less than or equal to the
number of precinct committeeman positions, the county board of supervisors may cancel the election for
those positions not sooner than seventy-five days before the election and appoint the person who filed the
nominating petition to fill the position. If no person has filed a nominating petition to fill a position, the
position is deemed vacant and shall be filled as otherwise provided by law. A precinct committeeman
who is appointed pursuant to this subsection after filing a nominating petition shall be deemed an elected
precinct committeeman. F. The term of office of a precinct committeeman is two years and begins on
October 1 after the primary election at which the precinct committeeman was a candidate and continues
until October 1 after the following primary election at which a precinct committeeman is elected.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
Jason Moore Melissa Buckley 03/04/2025 02:14 PM
Form Started By: Rayleen Richards Started On: 02/27/2025 01:13 PM

Final Approval Date: 03/04/2025



Board of Supervisors Regular 2.a. 1.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Amendment of Ordinance 01-19 Outdoor Fire Ordinance

Submitted For: Catrina Jenkins, EMP Director

Submitted By: Catrina Jenkins, EMP Director

Department:  NC Public Health Services District ~ Division: Emergency Management
Presented By: Catrina Jenkins

Motion before the Board:
PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of the amendment of Ordinance 01-19 Outdoor Fire Ordinance.

Background:

Navajo County Emergency Management and Preparedness, in conjunction with our regional partners,
continues to review the Navajo County Outdoor Ordinance on an annual basis. The ordinance serves to
align the restrictions of Navajo County with our regional partners including United States Forest Service,
Arizona Department of Fire and Forest Management, Apache County and municipalities as well as local
fire districts within Navajo County. The Outdoor Fire Ordinance clarifies what actions are not permissible
regarding outdoor fires, defines the need and levels of fire restrictions when necessary to implement and
rescind as well as the penalties for violating this ordinance.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the amendments that seek to clarify what is prohibited and what
exemptions are included for each item.

Attachments
Amended DRAFT
Draft Ordinance with Tracked Changes

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
Health Director Janelle Linn 02/27/2025 05:53 PM
Form Started By: Catrina Jenkins Started On: 02/20/2025 04:23 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/27/2025



ORDINANCE NO. 01-19

OUTDOOR FIRE ORDINANCE
Amended on March 11, 2025

An ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of Navajo County, Arizona,
amending Ordinance No. 01-19 (Outdoor Fire Ordinance); establishing
restrictions on certain outdoor fires; providing for the implementation of
emergency fire restrictions; and specifying civil and criminal penalties for
violations.

Preface

The purpose of fire restrictions 18 to reduce the risk of human-caused fires during periods of
unusually high fire danger and/or burning conditions. Fire restrictions impose many limitations
on the public and therefore should be implemented only after all other prevention measures have
been taken. These measures include, but are not limited to increasing the number of prevention
signs,  public contacts, media campaigns, increased enforcement of restrictions, etc. Fire
restrictions should be considered when high to extreme fire danger is predicted to persist. Other
considerations are the level of human-caused fire occurrences being experienced, firefighting
resources available, high human-caused risk potential, live fuel moisture is at or approaching
historic thresholds, no significant relief in fire weather potential in the immediate forecast, large
fire activity occurring on a unit (within the county) or within the Region, and fire preparedness
levels so indicate. An appropriate level of preparedness to meet wildland fire management
objectives is based upon an assessment of vegetation, climate, and topography utilizing the
National Fire Danger Rating System (NFDRS).

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF NAVAJO COUNTY AS
FOLLOWS:

1. TITLE

This ordinance shall be known as the Navajo County Outdoor Fire Ordinance.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



2. EFFECTIVE AREA

This Ordinance is effective in the unincorporated area of Navajo County, exclusive of
areas under the jurisdiction of the United States, the State of Arizona or a federally
recognized Indian tribe.

3. PURPOSE / AUTHORITY OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR

31

Page 2

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide a uniform system for political
subdivisions in Navajo County to determine what fire restrictions are needed and
when they are to be put into place during emergency fire conditions.

32 It is the duty of the Navajo County Emergency Management
Director/Manager (after consultation, as the Director deems appropriate, with the
U.S. Forest Service (“USFS”), local Fire Districts/Fire Departments, state or
municipal Emergency Management Directors or other fire officials) to initiate fire
restrictions during emergency fire conditions as described in Section 6.

3.2.1 The Emergency Management Director/Manager shall
utilize the National Fire-Danger Rating System (NFDRS) and Fire
Preparedness level indicators
(https://www.fs.usda.gov/detail/inyo/home/?cid=stelprdb5173311) to
help determine when such restrictions are necessary. As a general
guideline, emergency fire restrictions should be considered when the
Energy Release Components (ERCs) reading reaches 90% for at least 5
consecutive days.

3.2.2 The Emergency Management Director/Manager shall
attempt to coordinate with other fire officials in the region, a uniform
date for implementing such restrictions.

3.2.3  When the Emergency Management Director/Manager
determines that such restrictions are necessary, and the date of
implementation has been determined, the Director/Manager shall
recommend to the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors that such
restrictions be ordered pursuant to the Chairman’s emergency powers
under Title 26, Chapter 2, Article 1 of the Arizona Revised Statutes.
Upon the issuance of the Chairman’s order, the Navajo County
Emergency Management Director/Manager shall promptly take
appropriate steps to notify residents and visitors of the nature and extent
of the restrictions and the effective date.



3.2.4 Upon issuance of the initial order the County shall suspend issuance of
burning permits until the emergency fire restriction order is lifted.

3.2.5 Upon issuance of the initial order, the Chairman authorizes the

Emergency Management Director/Manager to modify the restriction
level or cancel the restrictions as conditions warrant per National Fire-Danger Rating
System (NFDRS) and Preparedness Levels indicators to determine the cancellation of
restrictions. The Emergency Management Director/Manager shall immediately notify the
Chairman and the County Manager of any changes in restriction and provide an update of
the change at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.

4. DEFINITIONS

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.4

Page 3

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

“ATTENDANCE” Open burning, bonfires or recreational fires shall be
constantly attended until the fire is completely and properly extinguished.
Appropriate tools, equipment or approved devices and approved extinguishing
agents such as dirt, sand, water or approved appropriate fire extinguishers shall be
readily available for immediate utilization. A fire shall be considered
“Unattended” if it is not constantly monitored with the appropriate tools and
equipment and properly extinguished.

“AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION (AHJ)” Means an entity that has
the authority and responsibility for developing, implementing, maintaining, and
overseeing the qualification process within its organization or jurisdiction. This
may be a state or Federal agency, training commission, NGO, private sector
company, or a tribal or local agency such as police, fire, or public works
department. In some cases, the AHJ may provide support to multiple disciplines
that collaborate as a part of a team (e.g., an IMT).

“AREA OF JURISDICTION?” - has the same meaning as provided for in A.R.S.
§ 11801(2), namely that part of Navajo County outside the corporate limits of any
municipality, federally owned land, or any federally recognized tribe in
accordance with 25 Code of Federal Regulations Part 83. This Ordinance also
applies to private property but does not apply to the interior of residential or
commercial structures. Further, this Ordinance applies to County islands
surrounded by municipalities or federally recognized tribal lands as defined in
AR.S. § 11-251.12(D).

“BONFIRE” means an outdoor fire utilized for ceremonial purposes and shall
not be less than 50 feet (15,240 mm) from any structure.

“CHARCOAL FIRE” means an open outdoor fire which uses primarily charcoal
as the combustible material, and which is used only for the purpose of cooking



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

Page 4

food.

“COMBUSTION ENGINES” means an engine which generates mechanical
power from a fuel. This includes an engine in which combustion is intermittent
such as four- stroke, two-stroke, gas turbines, and diesel engines.

“DELIBERATE or NEGLIGENT” burning means to deliberately or through
negligence set fire to or cause the burning of combustible material in such a
manner as to endanger the safety of persons or property.

“EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR” means the County official
designated as such by the Board of Supervisors.

“EXPLOSIVE or REACTIVE TARGETS” means targets that are reactive or
explosive in nature and creates a big bang and/or a cloud of smoke such as targets
that use Tannerite.

“FACTORY MUTUAL” (FM) is the independent testing arm of the
international insurance carrier, FM Global. FM approvals use scientific research
and testing to

make sure products conform to the highest standards for safety and property loss
prevention.

“FIREARMS” means a weapon that launches one or more projectiles at a high
velocity through the confined burning of a propellant.

“FIREWORKS” means any combustion or device consisting of a combination of
explosives and combustible, detonated to generate colored lights, model rockets,
pyrotechnic displays, smoke, and noise for amusement or entertainment purposes.

“FLUE” means a pipe, tube, channel, dust or passage through which hot air, gas,
steam, smoke or fire may pass, such as chimney, stovepipe or stack.

“LPG” - LPGis a type of fuel consisting of hydrocarbon gases in liquid
form. LPG is an abbreviation for ‘liquefied petroleum gas’.

“OPEN OUTDOOR FIRE” means any burning, oxidation or combustion of
combustible material of any type in the open where the products of combustion
are not directed through a flue to include the use of fire for the purposes of
weed/debris abatement.

“OUTDOOR FIREPLACE/COMMERCIAL SMOKER” means devices that
have been manufactured and or built to current, approved and tested standards

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Page 5

(UL or FM listed or equivalent) or to approved building codes.

“RECREATIONAL FIRE/CAMPFIRE” means burning of materials other than
rubbish where fuel being burned is not contained in an incinerator, outdoor
fireplace, barbecue grill or barbecue pit with a total fuel area of 3 feet (914 mm)
or less in diameter and 2 feet (610 mm) or less in height for pleasure, religious,
ceremonial, cooking or similar purposes. Recreational fires shall not be conducted
within 25 feet (7620 mm) of a structure or combustible material.

“RED FLAG WARNING” (or ‘Red Flag Conditions”) means a determination
by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration to inform the County
and other agencies of the imminent or actual occurrence of extreme fire danger or
extreme fire conditions.

“SPECIAL EVENT” means a one-time or infrequently occurring event outside
normal programs or activities of the sponsoring or organizing body.

“UNDERWRITER LABORATORIES” (UL) is a global safety science
company, and the largest and oldest independent testing laboratory in the United
States. Underwriters Laboratories tests the latest products and technologies for
safety before they are marketed around the world.

“DEVELOPED SITE” means an area, public or private, which has been
improved or developed for the safe use of fire. The Developed Site must include a
minimum radius of fifteen (15) feet surrounding the fire and/or combustion site
that is barren and cleared of vegetation and combustible materials. The area above
said fifteen (15) foot radius must also be cleared of all vegetation and combustible
materials.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



S. NON-EMERGENCY FIRE RESTRICTIONS

The following restrictions are always in effect, except as they may be superseded by
emergency fire restrictions pursuant to Section 6:

5.1

It is unlawful for any person to start, ignite, cause or permit to be ignited,

or allow or maintain any open outdoor fire except as allowed by permit through
the Emergency Management Director/Manager, the applicable Fire District or
Department, or the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality pursuant to
Title 49, Chapter 3 of the Arizona Revised Statutes.

During “Red Flag Warning” conditions, as posted by the National Weather
Service, no open outdoor fires, campfires, charcoal fires, agricultural burning or
outdoor smoking are permitted on either public or private property within the
unincorporated area of the affected zone(s).

The following fires are exempted from this restriction:

Page 6

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

Exemptions:

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

Fires used only for the cooking of food or for providing warmth for human
beings or for recreational purposes (campfires and charcoal fires) in an
area that is designated for that purpose and is barren or cleared of all
debris. A person of appropriate age must maintain a presence at all times
when in operation. A fire shall be considered “Unattended” if it is not
constantly monitored with the appropriate tools and equipment and
properly extinguished.

Fires used for the purpose of branding of animals, for the purpose of frost
protection in farming or nursery, or for the disposal of flags pursuant to
federal law. A person of appropriate age must maintain a presence at all
times when in operation. A fire shall be considered “Unattended” if it is
not constantly monitored with the appropriate tools and equipment and
properly extinguished.

Any fire set or permitted by authorized public officials in the performance
of official duty, if such fire is set or such permission is given for the



Page 7

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

5.1.4

5.1.6

5.1.7

purpose of instruction in the methods of fighting fires or the control of an
active wildfire.

Fires set or permitted by authority of the director of the Arizona
Department of Agriculture or by Navajo County agricultural agents for the
purposes of disease and pest prevention.

5.1.5 Fires authorized by Special Use Permit as issued by the
Emergency Management Director/Manager, Fire District or Fire
Department.

Fires set by or permitted by the federal government or any of its
departments, agencies or agents, or by the state or any of its agencies,
departments or political subdivisions, for the purpose of watershed
rehabilitation or control through vegetative manipulation.

Fires permitted by any rule or regulation adopted pursuant to Title 49,
Chapter 3, Article 3 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, by any special or
conditional permit issued by a hearing board established under said Article
3, or by any rule or conditional permit issued pursuant to Title 49, Chapter
3, Article 2, when pursuant to ARS § 49-402 the Arizona Department of
Environmental Quality has assumed jurisdiction of the portion of Navajo
County where the fire is located.



6. EMERGENCY FIRE RESTRICTIONS

Navajo County County uses fire restrictions to help prevent unwanted, human-caused
fires and to limit the exposure of residents and visitors during periods of potentially
dangerous fire

conditions.

Implementation of fire restrictions occurs based on a combination of factors that are
carefully measured. Criteria used to determine when to implement restrictions includes

things

such as current and predicted weather, fuel moisture, fire activity levels, and

available firefighting resources.

In addition to the non-emergency fire restrictions set forth in Section5, the following
emergency fire restrictions when ordered and in effect shall apply.:

6.3

6.4

Page 8

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

6.1 During “Red Flag Warning” conditions, as posted by the National
Weather Service, no open outdoor fires, campfires, charcoal fires, agricultural
burning or outdoor smoking are permitted on either public or private property
within the unincorporated area of Navajo County.

6.2  When it has been determined by the Emergency Management
Director/Manager that additional emergency fire restrictions are needed to assure
the safety of the public, the Director/Manager shall recommend that the Chairman
of the Board of Supervisors order additional emergency restrictions at the
appropriate restriction stage level.

When it has been determined by the Emergency Management Director/Manager
that additional emergency fire restrictions are needed to assure the safety of the
public in unincorporated areas of Navajo County, the issuance of burning permits
shall be suspended until the emergency fire restrictions are lifted.

6.3.1 Open Burn Permits issued prior to the emergency fire restrictions
declaration shall be suspended until all fire restrictions have been lifted.

Display Fireworks are only permitted by Navajo County Ordinance 01-19. Except
as specifically allowed under the Fireworks Ordinance 02-19, it shall be unlawful
for any person to use fireworks when emergency fire restrictions are in effect.
Prohibitions of fireworks include but are not limited to consumer fireworks,
ground and handheld sparkling devices, cylindrical fountains, cone fountains,
illuminating torches, wheels and ground spinners in the unincorporated areas of
Navajo County.



STAGE ONE — Minimal Restrictions

Stage 1 fire restrictions occur in coordination with other governmental entities operating in
Navajo County, to include United States Forest Service, Arizona Department of Forestry and
Fire Management, Bureau of Land Management, Bureau of Indian Affairs, local city/town, tribal
and fire district/departments. Stage 1 fire restrictions are aimed at preventing the start of
wildfires caused by human activities that are known to be high fire risks.

During Stage 1, the following acts are prohibited at all times unless an exemption is listed:

1. Igniting, building, maintaining, attending, or using a fire or campfire fueled by
combustible materials such as wood, charcoal, briquettes, and/or coal.

Exemption: Fires fueled by combustible materials, such as wood, wood pellet smokers,
charcoal, briquette, and/or coal, used only for the cooking of food or for providing
warmth for human beings or for recreational purposes (campfires and charcoal fires) must
be in Developed Site, as defined above.

Exemption: Use of the following items are permitted: propane fire rings, pellet
stoves/smokers/grills that have UL or FM approval and are a contained unit. A person of
appropriate age must always maintain a presence when in operation.

2. Smoking outdoors.

Exemption: Smoking within an enclosed vehicle is allowed. Smoking may also be
allowed in or on porches, carports, garages, parking lots and other areas or properties
which are cleared of all combustible materials so long as the smoking does not create a
substantial risk of fire. All smoking materials must be and properly extinguished and
disposed of in an appropriate manner. At no time is it allowed to discard lit cigarettes,
cigars, or other smoking materials from a vehicle, or from ones’ possession in a public
place. ARS 13-1603.a.1

3. Use of all consumer fireworks.
Exemption: None

4. Use of explosive targets, tracer rounds, and/or incendiary ammunition.

Page 9

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



Exemption: None

Additional Exemptions During Stage 1:

a) Persons obtaining a written “Special Use Permit” from the “Authority Having
Jurisdiction” that specifically authorizes the otherwise prohibited act.
b) Emergency repair of public utilities and railroads as per attached conditions.
) Any Federal, State, or local officer or member of an organized rescue or
firefighting
force in the performance of an official duty.
d) Other exemptions unique to each “Authority Having Jurisdiction”.

** An exemption does not absolve an individual or organization from liability or responsibility
for any fire started by the exempted activity. A person who commits an act in violation of this
chapter that results in an appropriate emergency response or investigation and who is convicted
of the violation may be liable for the expenses that are incurred incident to the emergency
response and the investigation of the commission of the offense in accordance with Arizona
Revised Statute 13-1709; Emergency response and investigation costs; civil liability.

STAGE TWO — Moderate to Severe Restrictions

Stage 2 intensifies the restrictions in effect from Stage 1 by focusing on activities that have a
relatively high risk of causing a fire to start.

The following acts are prohibited at all times under Stage 2, unless an exemption is listed:

1. Building, maintaining, attending, or using a fire, campfire, charcoal, coal, or wood
including fires in developed campgrounds or improved sites.

Exemption: Devices used only for the cooking of food or for providing warmth for
human beings in an area that is designated for that purpose and is barren or cleared of

all debris for 3 feet in diameter around the device. Permissible devices include propane
fire rings, pellet stoves/smokers/grills that have UL or FM approval and are a

contained unit. A person of appropriate age must always maintain a presence when in

operation.
2. Smoking outside of designated areas.
Page 10

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



Exemption: Designated areas for smoking include inside of an enclosed building and
inside vehicles. Smoking may also be allowed in or on porches, carports, garages,
parking lots and other areas or properties which are cleared of all combustible materials
so long as the smoking does not create a substantial risk of fire, and all smoking materials
are properly extinguished and disposed of. At no time is it allowed to discard lit
cigarettes, cigars, or other smoking materials from a vehicle, or from ones’ possession in
a public place. ARS 13-1603.a.1

3. Outdoor Mechanical and Industrial Prohibitions:
a. Operating any electric device or internal combustion engine during mechanical or
industrial operations that would produce open flames or sparks.
b. Welding or operating acetylene or other torch with open flame.
C. Using an explosive.

Exemption: Industrial operations where specific operations and exemptions are identified,
and mitigation measures are implemented as outlined by the Authority Having
Jurisdiction.

Exemption: Welding, or operating acetylene or other torch with open flame in an
enclosed or developed area designated for that purpose that is equipped with appropriate
fire protection.

Exemption: Persons operating equipment with UL and/or FM approval and spark
arrestors such as chainsaws (electric or internal combustion engine), lawnmowers and
landscaping equipment in maintained landscaped space.

4. Operating motorized vehicles off designated roads and trails.

Exemption: Operating motorized vehicles on designated roads and trails so long as you
park in an area devoid of vegetation within 10 feet of the roadway.

5. Use of all consumer fireworks.
Exemption: None
6. Use of explosive targets, tracer rounds or incendiary ammunition.

Exemption: None

Page 11

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



7. Discharging firearms.

Exemption: Any federal, state, or local law enforcement officer, or member of an
organized rescue or firefighting force in the performance of an official duty.
Exemption: Discharging firearms is permissible while engaged in a lawful hunt pursuant

to state, federal or tribal laws or regulations or in an agency designated shooting range or
law enforcement officials in the course of their duties.

Additional Exemptions During Stage 2:

1.

Persons obtaining a written “Special Use Permit” from the Authority Having
Jurisdiction that specifically authorizes the otherwise prohibited act.

Operating generators with a UL and/or FM approval and an approved spark
arresting device within an area that is barren or cleared of all overhead and
surrounding flammable materials within three feet of the generator.

Emergency repair of public utilities and railroads and mitigation measures are
implemented as outlined in an agency plan.

Persons conducting activities in those designated areas where the activity is
specifically authorized by written posted notice.

Other exemptions unique to each “Authority Having Jurisdiction”.

** An exemption does not absolve an individual or organization from liability or responsibility
for any fire started by the exempted activity. A person who commits an act in violation of this
chapter that results in an appropriate emergency response or investigation and who is convicted
of the violation may be liable for the expenses that are incurred incident to the emergency
response and the investigation of the commission of the offense in accordance with Arizona

Revised Statute 13-1709; Emergency response and investigation costs; civil liability

7. FIRES EXEMPT FROM EMERGENCY RESTRICTIONS

The following fires are exempted from the provisions of the emergency fire restrictions
set forth in Section 7

7.1

7.2

Page 12

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

Fires set or permitted by an authorized public official, federal, state or local, in the
performance of the officer’s official duties.

Fires set or permitted by the state entomologist or Navajo County agricultural
agents for the purpose of disease and pest prevention.



7.3

Fires set or permitted by the United States, the State of Arizona or any federally
recognized Indian tribe, or any of their respective departments, agencies or
political subdivisions, for the purpose of fire prevention or control, watershed
rehabilitation or control through vegetative manipulation.

8. FAILURE TO OBEY LAWFUL ORDER

The failure to obey a lawful order by the Emergency Management Director/Manager, a
certified peace officer, a firefighter or other officer of a Fire District/Fire Department, or
uniformed personnel or certified peace officer of the USFS or failure to comply with the
requirements of this Ordinance (including without limitation an order to extinguish or put
out any lit, burning or smoldering materials during emergency fire restrictions) shall be a
distinct and separate violation of this Ordinance.

9. ENFORCEMENT / PENALTIES

9.1

Page 13

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

This Ordinance may be enforced by the Emergency Management
Director/Manager or designee, any certified peace officer acting within the
officer’s area of jurisdiction, a firefighter or other officer of Fire District/Fire
Department acting within the authorized officials’ area of jurisdiction, or
uniformed personnel of the USFS acting within their area of jurisdiction.

9.2 Civil Violation. Except as set forth in Section 9.3, when a violation of this
Ordinance is undesignated or is designated a first offense by the enforcement
official or prosecuting attorney, a person found to have violated this Ordinance
shall be deemed to have committed a civil offense and shall be subject to a civil
penalty of not less than five hundred dollars ($500) nor more than one thousand
five hundred dollars($1,500) plus surcharges, fees and court costs, plus restitution
for any medical treatment required, reimbursement for emergency response
personnel and equipment and any property damage or other economic loss
suffered by any person as a result of such violation.

9.3 Criminal Violation. When a person convicted of a violation of this
Ordinance has previously been charged with a violation of this Ordinance during
the preceding 12 months, or has refused to obey the lawful order of an officer as
set forth in Section 9, the person shall be deemed to have committed a Class 1
misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine of not less than two hundred fifty
dollars ($250) nor more than two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) for each
violation or count, plus surcharges, fees and restitution for any medical treatment
required, reimbursement for emergency response personnel and equipment and
any property damage or other economic loss suffered by any person as a result of
such violation, and may include up to six (6) months in jail.




9.4  Continuing violations. If any violation of this Ordinance is a continuing one, each
day shall be deemed a separate violation.

SO ORDAINED by the Navajo County Board of Supervisors at Holbrook, Arizona on March
11,2025
NAVAJO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

By

Dawnafe Whitesinger, Vice-Chair

ATTEST:

Melissa W. Buckley
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Page 14

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



ORDINANCE NO. 01-19

OUTDOOR FIRE ORDINANCE
Amended on 05/24/2022

An ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of Navajo County, Arizona, amcndmg
Ordmance No. 01-19 (Outdoor Flrc Ordmancc),b,

providing for the lmplcmentatlon of emergency fire restrictions; and speclfymﬂ
civil and criminal penalties for violations.

Preface

The purpose of fire restrictions is to reduce the risk of human-caused fires during periods of
unusually high fire danger and/or burning conditions. Fire restrictions impose many limitations on
the public, and therefore should be implemented only after all other prevention measures have been
taken. These measures include, but are not limited to increasing the number of prevention signs,
public contacts, media campaigns, increased enforcement of restrictions, etc. Fire restrictions should
be considered when high to extreme fire danger is predicted to persist. Other considerations are: the
level of human-caused fire occurrences being experienced, firefighting resources available, high
human-caused risk potential, live fuel moisture is at or approaching historic thresholds, no
significant relief in fire weather potential in the immediate forecast, large fire activity occurring on a
unit (within the county) or within the Region, and fire preparedness levels so indicate. An
appropriate level of preparedness to meet wildland fire management objectives is based upon an
assessment of vegetation, climate, and topography utilizing the National Fire Danger Rating System
(NFDRS).

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF NAVAJO COUNTY AS
FOLLOWS:
1. TITLE

This ordinance shall be known as the Navajo County Outdoor Fire Ordinance.

2. EFFECTIVE AREA AFIREZONES

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

[ Commented [CJ1]: Update to new branding seal

.- { Formatted: Strikethrough

i { Formatted: Strikethrough

o= [ Formatted: Strikethrough

—AA)

== { Formatted: Strikethrough




AU 3sn |eP10 Jo4 - Ajuno) ofeaeN

7 93eq

woysAg Suney Iefue-oir,] [euoreN Jod jueLiEM SUONIPUOD SB SUOIILISAI
91} [90UED IO [9AI] UONIOLISAI Y} AJIpOUr 0} JOZBUBIA/I0J0II(] JUSWITBURIA
AduoBiowy oy} S9ZLIOYINE UBULIIRY)) 9y} “IOPIO [eNIUI 9y} Jo souensstuod() §°7°€

‘PAYI] ST 19PIO UOIOLIISAT 11 AouddIowd ay) [nun syruad uruing
Jo 2ouensst puadsns [Jeys Ajuno)) oY) Iopio [eniul oy} Jo souensst uod) $'TE

"9Jep 9AI}09JJ9 Y} PUE SUOIIOLISAI AY) JO
JU9]X0 PUE 2INJBU I} JO SIONSIA pUe sjuapisal Ajiiou 03 sdojs ojeridoidde axey
Apdwoad [Jeys 1a8euen/1030211(] Juswadeur]y Aouagdiowy Ajuno)) ofeaeN
2y} “I9pIO S UBULIIBYD) JY} JO 9dURNSSI oY) uod() ‘SOINIeIS PISIADY] BUOZLIY
oy Jo [ 9y ‘g Jaxdey) ‘9z opiL Jopun siomod Adusdrows s uewrrey)
oy} 0} juensind pajopIo g SUONOLNSAI Yons Jey) siosialadng jo pieog
Y} JO UBULI[EY)) S} 0} PUSWTIOII [[BYS JOSBUBIA[/I0J00II(T ) ‘POUTULIS)OP
uoaq sey uonejuowd[dw Jo ojep oY} pue ‘AIessaddu dIe SUOIIOLISAI
4ons Jey} SaUIIg}op Ja3eurA/I010211(] Juowadeuey Aouadiowd oyl usyp  €°7°€

*SuoI3oLIISaI yons Junuawojdwr
Ioj o)ep uULOJIUN B (S)aU0Z PIJOJJe 3y} Ul S[EIOLJO ST JAYI0 YHM
91euIp1009 03 Jdwaye [[eys 193vURIA/1019211(] JuswoSeueIy Aouadiowg oy, TT'€

'SABp 9A1INOASUOD
G 1589] 1B 10} 94,06 SAYoral Suipear (SO siusuodwo)) oses[ay A31aug oy}
USYM P2IOpISUO0d 3q P[NOYS SUOIIdLIISAI a11j Aouagiowd ‘aurjoping [erouas e

SS3IppE 15 1931103 0} pajepd() :[€rD] pajuswiwo) | -~

[euonjeN Y} dzIjnn [[eys IaSeueA/1010211(] Judwodeue]y Aouodowy a4l '€

*/ UOI}09S Ul PAqLIdSIP SB SUOLIPU0D a1y Aouadiowd SuLmnp (SOUOZ J0) dUOZ d11j
Aue Ury)im SUOIId1IISAI AI1J 9JeIIIUL 0} (S[BIO1JO 211] ISYJO 10 SI0JIAM(] JUSWISBURIA
KousSrowy [eddiunu 1o dJe)s ‘spuourireda(q a11,/s10msI(q 241 [890] (..SASN.,)
20IAIDG 15210 ") oy ynm ‘ojenrdoxdde swioop 103021I(] SY) SB ‘UONE}NSUOD
Joye) 108eURIA/1030211(] JuowaSeue ]y Aouadiawy Ajuno)) ofeAeN 3y} Jo A1np ay3 st ] raly

'suonIpuod a1y Aouadiows Jupnp aoeqd ojur jnd aq o1 are Lay; usym
PUE POPadU 218 SUONILISII 11J JeyM SUIULID)Op 0} AJunoy) ofeAeN Ul SUOISIAIPGNS
[eanijod 10J wasAs wojrun e apiaoid o3 s1 soueuIpI() s1y) Jo asodind sy, e

HOLOMIIA INFNADVNVIA ADNIDYAINA 40 ALRIOHLNY / ASOJLdNd €

YBNOILIONIAS :PRREULIDY |-~ HOOG-SBH-Bode-POTeIOdIOOtIHR-OH-0UBLIPIO-SH} Jo-sasediad Jo aqLy ueIpu] paziugooar

A[[eIopaj B 10 BUOZLIY o& are)g o nmwaﬁm vom:D 2y} Jo uondIpsunf oy} Iopun seare
JO 2AISN[oX2 ‘Auno) ofeaeN Jo eale pajerodiodurun oy) Ul SAIOIYJS SI SOUBUIPIQ SIYL



AjuQ 3s) |BI210 404 - Ajuno) ofeaeN

¢ 93eq

JouBINSUT [BUOTIBUIANUI 31} JO e Sur)sa) juapuadopur oy st (JAL])  Jeunjy 10108,  6'F

‘9luIRuUR ], 9sn Jey) S3o5Te) Se Yyons ouws Jo pnoyo e Io/pue Jueq J1q e $91BIIO pue
aInjeu ur 9A1s0[dXa 10 9A[j0RAI A1 Jey) SjoSIe) sueow  S)o3Ie] 9AT)IORIY 10 JAISO[dXT,, 8

‘sios1aladng jo preogd oy}
£q yons se pajeudIsap [BIO1}J0 AUN0) SY) SUBSW  J0JOSII(] JUswadeuep Aoudsisws,  L'p

*Aradoud 10 suosiad jo Kjayes ay)
Io8uepuUD 0] Se ISUUBW B YONS Ul [BLIDJBW J[qIISNqUOd Jo Juriing o) asned 10 0} d11)
395 2ouadiSau ySnoly} 10 A[9jeIaqI[op 0) sueow Juruing JuoSi[SoN 10 djeIaqldd,, 9

"SouI3uo [9SAIp puk ‘saulqun) ses ‘o)oIs-0Mm)
‘9)013S-1N0J SE YONs JUSPIULIAUIT ST UOTISNUIOD YOIy UT SUISUs e sapnjour iy ‘[onj
' woly Jomod jeorueydowr sajeroua3 yorgm auidus ue suesw  ssurSug uonsnquio),, S

"pooy Surxyjood yo asodind ayj J0j AJuo pasn SI YoIYm puUe ‘[eLIojew S[qrISnquIod
ay) se [eodreyd Ajrewrnd sasn yoiym a11y 1oopino uado ue suesw 211 [BOdIRYD,, P

‘2njonys Aue woly (Wuw 0pzG1) 199) 0S UBY) SS9
9q jou [[eys pue sasodind [EIUOWISIAD 0] POZI[IIN AIIJ JOOPINO UB SUBDW  JIJUOY,, €'

(LN ue
“32) wea) & Jo Jred e se ajeroqe[[oo ey saurjdrosip ojdnnu o3 oddns apraoid Aewr
[HV 24} ‘sased awos uf ‘juauriredop sy1om arjqnd 1o ‘ary ‘eo1jod se yons Louade [eao]
10 [eqin e 10 ‘Auedwos 10309s ojearrd ‘QON ‘uorssturwod Sururer) ‘Aousde [eropa]
10 91e1s B 9q AeW S1Y T, "uonoIpsun{ 1o uornezuesio ) unyiim ssadoid uonesyienb
ay) Suressiaao pue ‘Bumurejurew ‘Sunuswejdun ‘Burdojeadp 1oy Anjiqisuodsar
pue Ajioyine ay) sey jey) AJus ue suesjy ([HV) . Uonoipsunf Juiaey Ajoginy,, Ty

‘paysi3unxa A[1adoid pue juswdinbo pue sjoo} ojendoxdde ayp yym pazojuowr
AJJuBISUOD J0U ST1 J1  PIPUSIIRU(),, PAIOPISUOD 3 [[BYS 911} Y "UOHEZI[IIN SJeIpa W]
10J d[qe[reAe A[ipeal aq [[eys sioysmdunxs a1y dendoidde porordde 10 197em
‘pues “uIp se yons syuade Furysin3unxa parordde pue sod1asp pasoidde 1o juswdimnba
‘s100y ayenrdoxddy “paysm3unxa Aradord pue A[ejerdwos st a1y ayj [1jun papuajie
A[JUeISUOD 9q [[BYS SAIJ [BUOLJBAIdAI Io saiyuoq ‘Suruing uad( ouepuany,, I'v

ﬁ EEE%E&NJ e e e R B ’

[[e O suoniuyap uo Sumewiioj pasuey) [ )] pajuswILIo)

 SNOLLINLAa, ¥

‘Sunoowr preog pafnpayos
Arerndar jxou ayy je a8ueys ay) jo ojepdn ue opraoid pue uoONOLISAI
ur saueyd Aue Jo 198euR]A AJUN0Y) 9y} PUE UBULITEY.) Y} AJ1)0U A[ojeIpauul
[leys Iofeurjp/10100m( JuowdSeue]y AoudSIowrg oY]  SUONOLISAI
JO UONE[[99URD 3} SUIULI2JOP 0] SIOJEOIPUI S[9Ad7] ssoupatedard pue (SUAAIN)



Ajup asn |edIYo 404 - Ajuno) ofeaeN

t 98eq

‘PIIOM Y} pUNOIE pajoyIeur
are Koy} 210§9q Ajayes 1o} sorSojouyod) pue syonpoid jsaje] oY) S)sI) SILIOIRIOR ]
SIOMIMISpU[) 'S9JeIS paju[) 2y} ur A1ojeroqe] Sunsa) judspuadopul jsIp[o pue
1so81e] oy} pue ‘Kuedwod 9oulos A1ojes [eqo[3 e st ((]) SoLIojeIoqe ] IJUIMIapU(],, 6I'F

*Apoq SurziueSio 10 Surtosuods ay Jo saniAnoe 10 surerdoid
[eWIOU 3PISINO JUIAS Surunaoo Apuanbaiyur 10 AWN-9UO B SUBIW JUIAY [B103dS,,  SI'p

*SUONIPUOd
211) SWAIIXA 10 J9FUEP 211 SUWAIIX JO SDUILINODO [BNIOE JO JUSUTUIW S} JO SAOUITE
ISY)0 pue AJUnoy) Sy} ULIOJUI O} UOIELSIUIWPY dLydsour)y pue 5Iuead() [eUoeN
oy} Aq uoneuIWISp B suedw ( suonipuo) Se[] pay, 10) Jumrep el poy,, LIV

‘[eLIdJRW S[QTISNQUIOD JO DINJONI)S
' Jo (W (79/) 199) T UIYIIM PIJONpuod oq JoU [[BYS SaIlj [euONEaIday ‘sasodind
reqrwrs 1o Surjood ‘reruowaidd ‘snoidijor ‘amses[d 10j 3oy ul s 10 (WwW ()19)
193] 7 pUe J3)OWEIP UI SSI] 10 (WU {]6) 199 € JO BAIE [on] [10) B Yiim J1d andagreq 1o
11118 ondaqIeq ‘0oe[daIlj J00PINO I0JRISUIOUT UL UT PAUTBIUO0D JOU ST pauIng Suraq [ong
aIoyM ySIqqni Uey) Joyjo s[errsjew Jo Suruing sueowr  aiydure))/oIr] [eUOIBAIOY,, 9I'p

'sopod Surp[ing paAoidde 03 10 (Jusreamnbs 10
Pa1sI] JAL 10 1)) SpIepuels pa)se) pue pasoidde ‘uaring 03 3]Inqg 10 pue painjoejnUBL
Us2q 9ABY Jey} SIOIA9p SuBOW Joyowl§ [eldIduwnmo)/edeidang IoopinQ,, SIb

"Juswaleqe SLIqap/paam Jo sasodind oy} 10} 2113 JO SSn Y} 9pN[OUT 0} dn]J € YSnoxy)
P330311p jou are uonsnquod jo synpoid sy a1oym uado ayy ur adAy Aue jo [euojew
9[q1ISNqWOod JO UOIISNquUIod 10 uolepIxo ‘Juruing Aue sueaw 211, JoopinQ uadQ,, pIp

- sed wnajonad payanbry, 10 uorjeIASIqqE UR
S1 O] "wuioy pinbiy ur sases uoqIes0IpAy o Junsisuod [onyjoadAre st 04 1-.0d T, €I

"yoess 10 odidoaoys ‘Aauuryo se yons ‘ssed Keuwr a1ry 10 OYOWS ‘WIL)S
‘sed ‘mre joy yoym ySnoayy a8essed 1o jsnp ‘[ouueyd ‘oqny ‘odid e sueow on[y,, IV

"sosodind JUSWUTEIIAIUD 10 JUSWASNIUE 10] 9SI0U pue ‘dyows ‘sAe[dsip oruysojoIAd
‘519901 [opour ‘spy3I| paI0[0d JeIouad 0} PojeUoIdp V[qIISNQUIOd pPuE SIATSO[dXD
JO uoneUIQWOD B JO FUIISISUOD IDJAP 10 UOHSNQUOD AUB SUBIUI SYIOMIIL], [['}

juejodoud e jo Suruing pauyuod ay3 ySnoyy
K007 431y © Je sanvaloxd arowr 10 ouo saysune| jey) uodeom e suedwW  SWIRAIL], O]'F

‘uonjuaAaid ssof Auadoid pue £)ayes 10] sprepue)s 1say3Iy Y3 0 WLIOJuod spnpoid
aIns ayeuw 0} 3ur}S9) pue YoIeIsal SIJNIULIIS sosn s[eaoidde o] “[eqoiD) A ‘IoLIIRd



AluQ asn |eRY O 104 - Aiuno) ofeaeN

¢ 98eq

"S[EII9IEW J[qIISNqUIOD PUE UONBII59A [[e JO poIed|d o 0S| Jsntl SNIpel J00j
{C1) U331 pres 0AOqE BoIe oY |, ‘S[elIojew 9|q1ISnquiod pUe UOIIEI59A JO PaIea]d pue
US1Teq ST Jeq] 931S UOISTquuod 10/pUe ai1) dU) sUIpUnoLns 193 (¢]) UdaLj JO SnIpel
WINUIUTUI & 9pN|oUl JSNUT 9J1§ pado[aAd(] oY, 211] JO 9sn 3Jes oY) 10] pado[oAdIp 10

21§ padoan3q, oy uonwugap pappy :[SE] pegusuwo) | -~~~ PIACIAWI USS] SeY YoIym opeAlid 10 d1[qnd Bale Ue Sueow WALIS Q4d0TAATA,. 0CF




9 98eq

"DIIJPJIM JATIOR UR JO [01JU0D 3} JO sa11y Sunysiy Jo SpoyIaw 9} Ul Uoonnsur
Jo asodind ay3 107 uoAIS s1 uorssTUIIad YONs 10 335 SI 9J1J YONS J1 “AInp [eI1o1jJ0
Jo oouemrogiad oy ur feroggo o1qnd pazuoyine Aq papruad 10 19s a1y Auy

‘paysinunxo
Aprodod pue juswidinba pue sjoo} ojerrdoidde ay) yim parojruour AJjueisuod
J0U ST 31 JI  PIpUS)eu[),, PISpIsu0d 3q [[eys a1 y uonerado ur uaym
sown) [[e ye 9oussaxd e urejurew jsnw o5e ojeridoidde jo uosiad v “me| [e1opay
o1 juensind s3ejy jo jesodsip oy} Ioj J0 ‘A1dsinu 1o Jururej ur uonddoxd
jso13 jo asodand oy 10J ‘sewrue jo Suipuerq jo asodind ay) 10J pasn saIl]

‘pPaysIN3unxa
Aradoxd pue juswdmboe pue sjoo} ojeudoidde oy yum pazojruow
AJ3ue)suod J0u SI 31 J1 POpUdNeu[),, PAIapIsuod aq [[eys a1y y ‘uonerddo
ur uaym sowr [[e je 2oussaxd & urejurew jsnw o3e ojerdordde jo uosiad
VY 'SLIQap [[e JO paIego 1o uaureq s1 pue asodind jey) 10j pajeudisop sI jey)
©AIE UR UI (SO11) [eodIRyDd pue sarjdures) sasodind [euoneaoal 10j 1o s3uraq
ueumny 1oy yjurem Suipiaoid 10y 10 pooj Jo Suryood 3y 10J A[UO pasn SAIL]

€rs

ors

I'rs

:suopnduwaxy

AluQ asn [e121)0 104 - Ayuno) ofeAen

:uoIo1NsaI 1y} woly payduoxa are saIry Surmoj[oy oy

'(S)auoz pajoapye 9yl Jo vore
patexodioourun oy} urgim Auadoid ajeand 1o o11qnd Jayiro uo paprunad are Surjows
100pINo o Suruing [einynoide ‘soxy [eodreyd ‘samjduwres ‘saxy loopino uado ou
‘901AI0G IoYIBO A\ [RUOTIEN dU) Aq pajsod se ‘suonipuod  Sururep Ser. pay,, Suung

's9)nje)§ PISIATY BUOZLIY
ay Jo ¢ dey) ‘61 op1 L 01 juensind Ajrreng) [ejuswiuonAug Jo juounteds(] BUOZITY
ayy 1o uaunreda( 10 1o1s1q 211, o[qesijdde oy) ‘105euR)A/1030011(] JUSWSTEURIA
KouaSiowyg ay) y3noay) yurad £q pamojre se 3dooxa 211y 100pino uado Lue urejurew
10 Mo[[e 10 ‘pojusT aq o3 jruuad 1o asned “a3usT re)s o uosiad Aue 103 [nymerun sI i

s

1 uondag o3 juensind suorjornsar axy Aouadrows Aq popasiadns
3q Aew A9y se 3dodXxo ‘SIUOZ [[e Ul Soull} [[B Je JOQJJO Ul dIe SUONOLISAI SUIMo[[o] aYJ,

SNOILORLSTY A IA ADNADHYHINA-NON S



L 98eq

‘P23eO0] SI 211 2 212yMm Kjuno)
oleaeN Jo uonuod ayj o uonorpsun( pawnsse sey Aj1jeng) [BIUSWUOIAUL]
Jo juowpreda(] BUOZIIY oY) 70p-6F § SUV 03 uensind uaym ‘g [0y ‘¢

191dey) ‘6§ op1 L 01 yuensind pansst yrurad [euor}ipuod 10 a[ni Aue £q 10 ‘¢
S[oIY pres Iopun paysijqelss preoq Jurieay e Aq pansst jruad [euonipuod
Jo eroads Aue Aq ‘sa)njelS pastaay BUOZLIY 9y} JO ¢ SOy ‘¢ 1aidey)
‘6% oML 01 Juensind paydope uorjengai 1o ajnI Kue £q papruniad saig

‘uone[ndiuew aA1e}083A YINnoIy) [01U0D IO UOHRII[Iqeyar

paysiajem jo asodind 2y 10J ‘suorsiarpqus [esnijod 10 sjuowredsp
‘sarouage s31 Jo Aue 10 9Je)S 3y} Aq Jo ‘syuade o sarouse ‘syuswredop
SJ1 JO AUe 10 JUSWUIdA03 [eIopa) oyl Aq paptunrad 1o £q 10 S9I1,]

“Juowreda(T 911, 10 1OLISI(T 2I1,] ‘ToSeue)A/1030211(] JUoWoFeuRA]
AousBiowyg oYy Aq ponssi se juIdgd as() [eradS Aq pozuoyne saIrj

‘uonuaaaid 3sod pue osessip Jo sasodind
a3y} 10j sjuade [ernjnoude Ajuno)) ofeaeN Aq 10 armymondy jo juswreda(y
BUOZLIY 9] JO I0)0311p ay) Jo Auoyine Aq papruned 10 3as SaIT,]

Lre

9r'S

STS

|4 8

AU asn eIy o 104 - Aiuno) ofeaeN



AlUQ asn [e12130 104 - Ayuno) ofeaeN

g 28eq

3I] pue [equ] UMOJ/ANI0 [eo0] 'silgjjy UBIpU] JO neaing jUoWdseuejy pue] Jo
flealng] “JUAWIISBUE]A o11,] PUE A1IS10,] JO JUSUILIBAI(] BUOZITY “90TAIDS 15010, SIe1S

SsH

JIJ-Y31Y 0q O} UMOUY JIE Jey) SINIATIOE UBWNY AQ POSNEo SOIP[IM JO Hels U] sunuoAdd
e PowWIe a1e SUONOIISal A1) | J0elS SIUOWIedap/Id1ISIP d11] pue [eqil] UMOJ/AIID [d0]
"SITe]Jy UBIpU] JO Neaing JUOWOSEUB]A pue ] JO Neoing JUOWOBEUR]y oil,] PUe A1}Saio;]

Buuaquinu 10 $33)Inq ON *,5°0 Y7 :JuSpUL "vcﬂnE._cu_v, Jjo juaunIRedd(J BUOZILIY "301AIDS 1S210,] S3jel§ pajiu[] spnjdul 01 "Ajuno) o_m.amz ul m::m._umo

JUBIYBIH "vusu_EEw,\,u,.,rmo:::o [EIUDWIUIOA0S JOYI0 (I UOIBUIPIO0D Ul JNDJ0 SUONJIISal 9il) | 90818

SuonILYSIY [eWUIA — [ HOVLS

*Ayjuno)) ofeaeN jo seore pajerodroourun ay} ur sxouuids punoid pue
S[93yM “Say010) SUIFEUTWN]]I ‘SUTEIUNOJ SUOD ‘SUIBIUNOJ [BOLIPUI[AD ‘S301A9p Surpyreds
PJoypuRYy pue punoid ‘SYI0MIIIJ ISWNSUOD :0) PIIWI] JOU T8 JNq 9pN[IUT SYIOMIILJ
JO SuonIqIYO1{ "193JJ2 Ul 218 SUONILIISAT 211] AOUIFIOUWID UdYM SHI0MII1J asn 0) uosiad
Aue 10} [njme[UN 3q [[BYS }I ‘DOUBUIPI() SNIOMOII] 9} Iopun pamoj[e A|[esn1oads
se jdooxq ‘61-10 2oueuIp1) Auno)) ofeaeN Aq paprurrad L[uo are syromarr Aejdsiq  $'9

"PAYI U22q 2ABY SUONOLISI ITJ oy} [Iun papuadsns aq [[eys
UOTJRIB[D9P SUOIILISAI 211) Aouagiowo oy 0} Jord pansst syrurog umg uadpy  1°€°9

"PAYI] dI SUOIIOLIISI 241)
KouaS1ow ay) [13un papuadsns oq [[eys syruuad Suruing Jo souensst ay) ‘(s)auoz Aue
ur a1jqnd a1} Jo A32Jes 2y} 2INSSE 0} PAPISU AIB SUOIIOINSAT aI1J KOUIFISWa [euonIppe
18U} IoFBURA[/1010311(] JuswaSeur]A Aousgiowy oY) Aq poUIUIIa)Op U32q SBY N USYA €9

‘[9A9] 23e3s
uono1nsal derrdordde oy e suonoLnsar AouadIowa [euonIppe 13pio sosiaredng Jo
pIeog 9y} JO UBULIIEY)) 9] JBy} PUSWWO0I3I [[eYS I9FBUBIA[/I0}02II(] Y} (S)auoz Aue
ut o11qnd 2y} Jo A19es 9y} 2INSSE 0] POPAAU I SUOIIOLISAI 211 Aoudiowo [euonippe
Tey) 195eur]A/1039211(] Juswageue]A AouaSIows oy} Aq POUTWI}Op U9aq Sey 1 udy M 79

‘(S)auoz pajoajye ay) Jo eore
paresodioourun oy uryiim Aradord ajeatd 1o o1pqnd soyyie uo papruad ore Supjows
Ioopino Io Suruing [emjnoue ‘sany jeooreyo ‘saxydures ‘saxy 1oopino usdo ou
‘90TAIG I9YIBO A\ [RUONEN 2U) Aq pajsod se ‘suonipuod  Sururepy Sel] pay,, Sunng 19

:pajuswolduir usaq saey Aoy}
yarym ui (s)auoz oy} o) Ajdde [eys 15939 Ul pue paIoPIO USYM SUONOLISAI 21 Kouoadiowd
SuImof[o] Jy) ‘9 UONIS Ul YLOJ J9S SUOIOLINSaI a1y Aduagiows-uou sy) 0} uonIppe UJ

SNOILOLSHY HHIA ADNADHANWA 9



AluQ asn [e10 104 - Aiuno) ofeaeN

6 93eg

‘uorjesado ur uaym 39TA9p Ay} Ym oduasard
e ureyurew skempe jsnur o8e ojeudordde jo uosiad v 901Ap Y} JO 199) € UM
S[eLIsjewW d[qewIwej SUIPUNOLINS PUE PESYIIAO [[B JO PAIBIO IO UdLIeq SI Jetj) Bare
ue ul pasn aq AJuo ued [eaoidde JAJ J0/pue ) YHM SIOIASP Yong °JJO PUB UO pauIn]
2q ued jey) sjeny HJ-] Jo wmoajoxad pinbiy £q pojony A[o[0s 291A9p B JuIsn SUOSISJ g4
[B'€091-€1 SUV "d0e[d
orqnd & ur uorssassod SSUO UIOI} 10 ‘[OIYSA B WOIJ S[ELIdeW Junjows Ioy)o Io
‘s1e310 311218810 JI] PIEOSIP 0} PAMO[e JT ST 9WIT) OU Jy/ ‘Jo pasodsip pue paysi3unxa
Apodord ore sperrojewr Supnjowls [fe pue oI JO )SU [eljueisqns B 9)BAID JOU
saop Supyours oy} se SUo[ 0S S[ELIJEW 9[qIISNGUIOD [[B JO PaIea]d are yorym sangadord
10 seare 1oyjo pue sjo] Juppred ‘sofered ‘suodres ‘soyozod uo 10 ur pamoje oq
os[e Aew Surjouwls "PIMO[[E SI SI[OIYIA IpISul pue STUIP[INg PASO[OU UIYIM Supjourg €
‘uonesado ur uaym saury e Je 9ouasaid e urejurewr
jsnur 33e oenidoidde Jo uosiad Y Jiun paurejuod e are pue [eaoidde JA 10 ) oAy
ey S[[L3/s10y0ows/s9A03s 33]]9d ‘sSurr 211y suedoid apnjour SW)I A[GISSTUIID "IITAIP
9y} pUNOIe I9)oUIRIp UI 193] € 10J SLIGOP [[ JO paIedd 1o ualieq si pue asodind jey) 10§
pareuSisap si jey) vare ue ul (sany [eooreyd pue sanydwens) sasodind jeuoresrnal 10y

Jo sSuraq wewny Joj yyuLrem Surpraoid 10y 10 poog Jo SUIy0od oy} J0§ AUO Pasn Sail] Z
o€ pajiqryord asimIaylo oY) sazuoyne A[jesny1oads jey  uonorpsung

Suiaey Ajoyiny,, oy} woy Juudd 9s) [ewads,, uepum e Sururelqo SuosIdg ‘I

:suonduraxyy

JuaragIp Apysis aq Aew uoniqiyord oy J0J Surpiom 3t} 2I10J319Y)
{Sme[/suole[ngal [enjor 1Y) 9110 Isnuwr oq11/Aouade yoea ‘uoisiaoid urjows oy} 10J :JON

32«.6&#1&:0&,«0332.Eu»_.néhuvnz :11
Pasi] Mou st wapl yaea 10 suondwaxy :[£09] pajuswiwo) |-~ o

‘uonIuNWIWe punox 125eJ} Jo ()

‘sjo81e) aA1s0[dxo Jo a5 .

*$)I0MAITJ IOWNSUOD [[e pue Aue Jo as()

‘seare pajeusisap Jo opisino Junjourg

"mofaq suonduwoxa

oY1 ur pajou ssajun asdwed Jo a1y e Suisn 1o ‘Surpuope ‘Surureiurews ‘Surpring

N oen o

—

WBIYBIH "Ezn..:ouw,.,

ydusSerd mou pappy ([9£0] peauawIIIO) |-~ o - ‘ o - paisT

STUONAWIIXO UE SSI[UN SOWI] [[€ J& paliqIyoid 9Je SJoe SUIMO[[0] JY) | 9881 sunn(]

"SYSI 21131 9q 0} UMOUY 21€ e[} SINIATOE Ueiny Aq posied
SOIJPIM JO WEJS d(]) SUJUSADI T POUUTE o6 SUONILISAI ol1] | 90elS SJUdWedop;/jotiisip




AjuQ asn |ePIO Jo4 - Ajuno) ofeaen

01 23eq

ssuopdwaxy

WOUYGIH JoN (peReuMOd | e S S e e SRS i

1%
E
]
o
-
=
o0
B
Pqﬂ
3
=
S
4

pajejaa e I . N [ —
ﬁ are Aoy} SE Wd) | OJUI PAUIGUIOI 313M £ 9 9 :[60D] pejusuwiwio) % e ‘uonmunuwiuwe punot 12oe1) Jo 3s)
"sj081e) aA1s0[dXa JO 3s()
"SYIOMAIL] JOWINSUOD [[e pue Aue Jo 9s()

1ojowr Junerad’
‘aA1so[dxo ue Sursn) 2
-owre[y uado y)m 4210} 137310 10 dudjA)ode Jurjerodo 10 Surpom ‘q

‘syreds

Io sowrepy uado 9onpoid pinom jeyj suonerodo [eLnsNpul IO [EOIUBYIIW
JO 2SIN02 3y} Ul SUISUD UOHSNQUIOD [BLLIAIUI IO 3D]AP J111039]0 Aue Funerad ’
:suonIqIyoId [eLISNPU] PUB [BITURYIIA JoOpINQ '
‘seate payeudisap Jo apIsino Jupjouwrg T

"sayis paaoxdun Jo spunoi3dures padojaaap ur saiy Surpnjour
pooMm 10 ‘[eod ‘[eodreyo ‘aryduwres ‘a1 e Suisn 1o ‘Surpuape ‘Sururejurewt ‘Suiping T

< w8 = 8

h BHY6IH JoN :panewIo] w

Q,

FOOHOURHHHHURPI s S
7 93w1g Jo asodind — . . 3 i by b
ﬁ 3y} aquasap o} aSenSue| 195uons pappy :[grD] pojusBWIWIO) % il Tuv“m: ST UONdUWIX3 Ue SSI[UN g 958]S Jopun Sawlj JJe e pajlqiyoid 3Ie S108 SUlMOJ[oJ ST

18]S 0] 211] € Sulsned JO St 4ol A[oAle|ad
€ 9ABY Jey) SONTATIOE UO SUISTO0] AQ | 99e}§ W0l J93JJ3 Ul SUOHIMSII 3U} SSGISUSIUL ¢ 98¢l

SUOIJILIISIY I19AIS 03 AJRIPOIA — [T AOVLS

“Ajigpi] 11412 $1502 UoLISsaaul pup asuodsa. Louad.cawiy ‘0L -5 MIDIS
PASIAZY DUOZLIY 1AM JDUBPIOIIE UT ISUILJO YY) JO UOISSTWIWIOD 3Y] JO UOTIESIISIAUT ay) pue asuodsar
KouaSIoWId 9Y) 01 JUSPIOUT PILINOUT dIe Jey) SOSUadxa Y1 10§ 9[qel] 9q AeW UOTIE[OIA Y} JO PAIOTAUOD
SI oym pue uonednsaaur 10 asuodsar Aouadiowe syenudordde ue ur synsar jeyy soideys siy) jo
Uo[Je[01A UT 0B Ue suwod oym uosiad v “Ajanoe pajduiaxa oyy Aq parre)s aiiy Aue 10y Ajjiqisuodsal
Jo Ajiqer] woil uoneziue3io IO [enpIAIpUl Ue 9A[0sqe jou saop uondwoxo uy FLONx

s uonpipsung Suiaey Apoyiny,, yoes oy anbrun suondwaxa 1oy 6
‘90UBUIPIO
Ao Aq paje)s osimiIaylo ssoqun pajdwoxe st Arepunoq A0 e umgim puej [y '8
*AInp [eI51JJ0 ue Jo 2ouewIofrad oy} ur 3010§
Suny3iyany 10 9n9SAI PaZIULSIO UR JO JAQUIDW JO JIIIJJO [BI0] 10 “9)B)S ‘[eIopa] Auy v
‘suonIpuod payoeye Jod se speoirer pue sanijun orjqnd jo aredar AouoSrowry ‘9

-2omou pajsod uaplm Aq paziioyine Ajjesiyioads
ST AJIAIIOR 9U] 9IoUM SBoIe PIJeudIsSap QSOY) Ul SAIIAIOR SuIONpuod SUOSIoJ S



11 98eq

*AInp [ed1yjo ue Jo souewrojrad 9y ur 310§

Suny381yai1j 10 9N9SAI PIZIULSIO UR JO IOqUIAW 1O “TIOIJJO [BO0] IO ‘3Je)S ‘[eIopa) Auy
-20n0u pajsod uapim Aq pazuoyine A[jesijoads

s1 AJIAIOR oY) oIoym Seale pajeudISop 9SOY) U SIUANOE SUNONPUOD SUOSIDJ
‘uerd Kouage ue ur paurpino se pajuswodur

ore sainseaw uonedniw pue speoifrel pue saniun oqnd jo 1redar AouoSiowr
"Aempeor a1} JO 199 () UIY)IM UOTIR}9aA JO PIOAp BaIe

ue ur yred noA se Suojf os s[Ies} pue speol payeusdIsap Uo $a[o1YaA paziiojow Sunerad(y
"J0JRIoUd3 91} JO 193] 921U} UM S[BLIDIEW S[qRUIE[]

Surpunouns pue PeSYIdA0 [[e JO PAIBd[d IO UIIEq SI By} BAIE UB UIYNM 30TASD
Sunsawure yreds pasoidde ue pue [eaoidde o] 10/pue T © ynm s1ojerouss SuneradQ
‘uonerado ur uaym 991A9p Ay} Yiim aouasaxd

' urejurew sAemye jsnw o3e oerdordde jo uosiad v 901A9p Y} JO 129) € UTYIIM
S[eLI9JEW 9[qeUIWR]J SUIPUNOLINS PUB PEIYISAO [[e JO PAIBI[O JO USLIR] ST Jey) eoIe ug
ul pasn aq Auo ueo Jeaordde ] Jo/pue () © Y)IM SIOIASP Yong JJO pue uo pauin}
3q ued jer)) sjory DJ-] 1o wnosjonad pmbi] Aq A]o]0s pajony ad1A9p B SuIsn SUOSIdJ
‘uor3g9joid

a1y oreudoidde yym paddinbao st jeyy asodind jeyy 1oy pojeusSisap eare padojoasp
10 pasopoud ue ul dwepj uado yim Yoo} 10yjo Io ausjk1ooe Sunerado 1o ‘Fuipom
-o0eds padeospuej peurejurews ur juswidmnba

Surdeospue| pue s1omouwume] ‘(ur3ua UOIISNQUIOD [BUIS)UI JO LIOD]3) SMESUIRYD SB
yons siojsaure yreds pue [eaoidde Jo1. Io/pue 1 yna juswdinbs Sunesado suosiag
"uonoIpsung

Suiaey Auoyny 2y) Aq paurpno se pajuowsjdun oJe somseow uoneSnIw
pue ‘paynuap! are suondwoxs pue suonerado snyads aroym suolerado [ersnpuy
['®€091-€1 SYV "2de[d

o1iqnd & ur uorssassod S9UO WOIJ IO O[OIYIA B WOy S[eLdjew Supjows J9yjo 10
‘s1egd1o ‘sa)a1e310 1] pIeISIP 0] PAMOJ[e 11 ST W) Ol }y 'JO pasodsIp pue paysinsunxo
A1odoxd ore sjenojewr Supjows [[e pue oIy JO YSHI [BHUBISqNS B 9BaID joU
$o0p Sunjows 9y) se 3uo] OS S[ELIJEW J[qIISNQ U0 [[6 JO PaIed]d a1 Yolym sarpadod
10 seare 1oyjo pue sjo] Junyred ‘soSered ‘spodres ‘soyorod uo 1o ur pamoje 9q
os[e Aew SUDjOWS "PAMO][E SI SI[OIYIA dPISUI pue SFUIP[INg PISO[oUS UIYIIM SUDOWS
‘uonerado ur uoym souasard e urejurewr sfemye ysnw ae sjerdordde jo uosiad

V "Jun paurejuod e dre pue [eacidde JAL] 10 ) 9ARY JBY) S[[1IZ/SI19)0UWS/S3A0)S 19][od
‘s3ur1 a1y ouedoxd spnyour swg)l S[QISSTULIdJ "901AIP I} PUNOIR JOJAWEIP Ul 139 €
10J SLIGRP [[e JO PaIed[d 10 UdLreq st pue asodind Jey) 10] payeusSisap SI jey) eare ue u
s3ureq wewny 1o yyuLrem 3uipraoxd 10y 10 pooy Jo Surjood 3y} 10§ AJUO Pasn SAIAS(]
"Joe pajiqryoid asimIayo oy sazuoyine Aj[esyy10ads jey) uonoipsung

Suraey AQuoyny oY) woly JuIdg 9s) [erwads,, uopum e Suruieiqo suosiog

Alup 3sn |eRYO do4 - Aiuno) ofeaen



71 28eq

AjuQ 3sn (81140 104 - Ayuno) ofeaen

"90UBUIPIQ) SIY} JO UONR[OIA Sjeredas pue
JoUnSIp B9q J[eys (SuonoLsar a1y Aouagiows Junnp sjerdjew Sunapjows 1o Jumuwing 9 Aue
no ind 10 Yysin3urixa 0} J9pIo Ue uone Wi jnoynm Surpnjour) soueuIpIi() siyj Jo syuswarnbar
oy ynm A dwod o3 amjre} 10 SIS Y} JO 190130 9o8ad parjIied 1o [ouuosiod pawiojrun
Jo ‘uowreda(q 211,{/1911SI(] 211, B JO I201JJ0 IoY)0 10 19)ySyyail) & ‘19013J0 ooead poljIad
e ‘rogeuen/10j0a1(q juowadeury Aouodrowsr oy £q 1opio [yme] e £2qo 03 aInjiej ayJ,

HIAMHO TNAMVT ATIO OL TANTIVA 8

‘uone[ndruew 94119394 YSNOIy} [0U0D IO UOLRII[Iqeyal

paysidjem ‘[onuod 1o uonuaadid amy jo asodind oyj 10 ‘suorsiaipgns reonrjod
10 sapouade ‘sjuowpedap aanoadsar oy Jo Aue 10 ‘aquy uerpuy paziuSodal
AJre1opa] AUB 10 BUOZIIY JO 9je)S 2Y) ‘Saje)§ payup) ay) Aq paprurrad 1o jas sairg

‘uonjuaAaid jsad pue aseasip jo osodind ayj 10y syuase
[eanynouse Kjuno)) ofeae) 10 1s1S0[0WIOIUS IS Y} Aq panturiad Io 198 SAIL]

"SaMNP eIdLJO §,I2913J0 3y} Jo doueuLoyIad
oY) Ul ‘[ed0] 1o AJe)s ‘[esopa) ‘feronyyo orjqnd pazuoyine ue £q payruriad 1o 39S SAIIL]

I'L

L uondag ut guoj
19§ SuoIIoLISaT 211y Aouagdiaws ay) Jo suorsiaoid oy woiy payduraxs are saxy SuIMol[oJ sy,

SNOILORILSTY ADNIADYANH WOUA LJNAXH SHAIA ‘L

Aol 1419 151500 uoyp3Saaul pup asuodsa.a Kouad.iowg ‘60, - AVIS
PaSIAFY DUOZLLY )1 9DURPIOIIR UT SSUIJJO 91} JO UOISSIWIWIOD dY) JO UoNjeS1IsaAul 2y} pue asuodsax
Aous3191a 9y 0} JUSPIdUI PALINOUI Ie Jey) sasuadxa ay) 10§ S[qer] 9q AW UOIE[OIA 3y} JO PIJITAUOD
SI oym pue uonedusaaul 1o asuodsar Aousdows oendoidde ue ur synsar jeyy 1o1deyd siy jo
UOLJE[OIA UI JOB UR SIIWw0d oym uosiad y “A)1anoe paydwaxa oy Aq pajre)s a1y Aue 10y Ajjiqisuodsar
1o Ajfiqer] woy uopeziueSIo 10 [eNPIAIpUl Ue 9A[0sqe jou s20p uondwoxd uy LLONss

" uonoipsing Suraey] Aoyiny,, yoea o} anbrun suondwaxs 19y10)

*S91NP 19y JO 3SINOD O} UI S[RIOIJO JUSWADIOJUD

ey 10 93ues 3unooys pajeusdisop Aouade ue ur 10 suole[NTaI IO SME] [BqLI) IO [BISPS]
‘aje)s 0} juensind juny [nyme] e ur pagedus ofym aqissiutad st sureanty Surdreydsi(q
"90UBUIPIO

Ao £q pajels as1mIaylo ssajun pajdwoxe S Arepunoq A3o € UIYNM pue| [[V



Ajuo asn [epiyo 104 - AJuno) ofeaeN

€1 9%eqd

‘LSALLV

ueuIomIrey)) ‘193uISAYA| Sfeume(

kg

SYOSIAYALNS 40 MAVOd ALNNOD OFfVAVN
(44114
‘g UOIBJA] UO BUOZIIY “Y0O0IqIOH Je siosiatadng jo preog Ajuno) ofeaeN 2yl 4 QANIVAIO OS

‘uorje[o1A ojeredas e pawoap 2q [[eys Aep
[oerd ‘auo umunyuod e St 9uRUIPIQ SIY) JO UONIR[OIA AUe [ ‘SUONE[OIA SUIMUNUO) '

‘[rel ur syyuowr (9) xis 01 dn
Spnoul Aew pue ‘UoIR[OIA Yons Jo JnsaI e sk uosiad Aue Aq paIaJyns sSO[ JIWOU0dd
Ioyjo 1o adewep Ayradord Aue pue juswdinbs pue jouuosiad asuodsar Aouarowd
10} juowdsmMquial ‘pannbar juswgesl) [eoipowl Aue I0j UOUNJIISAI puB S99
‘sodreyouns snyd Junod 10 UOIIR[OIA Yo 10] (00§ Z$) SIB[[OP PaIpuny dAl} puBsnoy)
0M] UBLJ} 310W 10U (0T $) SIB[[Op A)J1J paI1puny 0M] UBY]) SSI[ JOU JO dulj B 0] 302(qns
3q [[eys pPUE IOUBIWAPSIUW | SSB[)) B PAPIWUIO ALY 0} paWwadp 94 [[eys uosiad ayp
‘6 UO1109¢ Ul Y1I0J 13 SE 1321JJ0 Ue JO 13PI0 [NJME] 24} £3GO 0} pasnjal Sey Jo ‘Syjuow
71 Surpaoaid ay) Suninp souBUIPIQ) SIY) JO UOTIB[OIA € Y)iM poadIeyd usaq A[snoradid
Sey 90UBUIPIQ) SIY} JO UOTIB[OIA B JO P)OIAUO0D uosiad & usypy “TOTE[OTA [euruiil,) €6

"UOTJR[O]A Yons
Joinsare se uosiad Aue Aq pa1aJyns ssoj S1wWoU0d? 1330 10 a3ewep Auadoid Aue pue
juowdinba pue [ounosiad asuodsar AousFiows 10] Juowosinquial ‘painbai jusuwesn
[ed1paw Aue 10 uonnjnsal snid ‘sJs03 1o pue 5395 ‘sagreyouns snid (00s 1 §)sre[jop
palpuny A1} puesnoy} Suo Ueyj 210w Iou ((OS§) SIL[[OP PIIPUNY QAL} Uey}
ss9[ jou Jo Ajjeuad [1A19 B 0] 109[qns 9q [[BYS PUB SSUIJJO [IAID € PIIWIWOD JARY O}
PAWadp 3 [[eYS 20UBUIPI() SIY} PAJe[O1A dARY 0} punoj uosiad e ‘Asuroye Junnaasoxd
10 TBIOIJJO JUSWADIONUD 2y} Aq 9SUQjo IsIy B pajeudisop s1 10 pajeusisopun si
90uRUIPI() SIY} JO UOIIR[OIA B USYM ‘€’ 6UOII0S UI [[)10] 135 se }dooxq TOTR[OIA [TAT) 6

‘uondIpsLN( Jo BaIe I19Y) UIyIM
Sunoe §.ISN 24} Jo [duuosiad pawIoyIun J0 ‘UONdIpSHN{ Jo eale S[EIo1Jo pazLoyine
sy umyum Sunoe Juswredo(q 2a1,]/91SIJ 211 JO I991jJ0 Joyjo 1o I1ySyeny e
‘aonorpsn(Jo vare s 195130 o) u1y)im Surjoe 1301jj0 aoead pary1ireo Aue ‘2ouSisap 10
IaZeurA/10)0311(] Juawadeuey AouaSIow 9y} AQ PaSIOJUS 3G ABW SOUBUIPIQ) SIY [, 1’6

SHLLTVNHAd / INFNADYOINA ‘6



AjuQ asn [eRIYO 104 - Juno) ofereN

vl o8ed

s1osiAladng jo preog ayj Jo 191D
Kappong * M eSSIPIA




Board of Supervisors Regular 3. a.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Contract #B24-12-013 Employee Benefits Consultant

Submitted For: Eric Scott, HR Director

Submitted By: Kathleen Outland, Procurement Trainee

Department:  Administrative Services
Presented By: Eric Scott

Motion before the Board:

Consideration of award of contract number B24-12-013 Employee Benefits Consultant to The Mahoney
Group.

Background:

This is a one-year contract to provide Employee Benefits Consultant for Navajo County with the option to
renew up to four additional one-year terms.

Sealed proposals were received by the Board of Supervisors at the Navajo County Governmental Center,
Holbrook, Arizona until 3:00 PM, M.S.T., February 12, 2025, in strict accordance with the specifications
on file in the office of the Navajo County Department of Public Works. No proposals were accepted after
3:00 PM, M.S.T. The proposals were publicly opened at 3:15 PM. One proposal was received.

Recommendation:

The Evaluation Committee evaluated the proposal and recommends award of contract to The Mahoney
Group.

Attachments
Evaluation Results

Contract
Offer Form

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Jeanine Carruthers Jeanine Carruthers 02/26/2025 04:32 PM

Brandt Clark Brandt Clark 02/27/2025 09:15 AM

Human Resources Director Eric Scott 03/03/2025 07:51 AM

Clerk of the Board Melissa Buckley 03/03/2025 10:29 AM

Form Started By: Kathleen Outland Started On: 02/25/2025 09:18 AM

Final Approval Date: 03/03/2025



RFQ No. B24-12-013 Employee Benefits Consultant Evaluation Criteria

Evaluator 1

Evaluator 2

Evaluator 3 Evaluator 4 Evaluator 5 Evaluator 6
QUALIFICATIONS
I Quallflcatlons_of Firm 8 10 10 10 10 10
(MAX 10 Points)
Il. Experience with Reference Based
Pricing Plan Design 25 25 25 25 25 25
(MAX 25 Points)
M. Referer?ces 4 4 5 5 5 4
(MAX 5 Points)
PROPOSED DESIGN
I. Recommendations g0|ng forward 10 15 15 15 12 15
(MAX 15 Points)
. i E
1. Integration of mplloyee Wellness 9 15 15 15 15 15
(MAX 15 Points)
lll. Experience Establishing Direct
Contracts 9 15 15 10 15 15
(MAX 15 Points)
CUSTOMER SERVICE
I Ava|Iab|||ty/R.eI|ab|I|ty 5 5 5 5 5 5
(MAX 5 Points)
. ing/L
IIl. Consulting/ e.gal Team 5 5 5 5 5 5
(MAX 5 Points)
CONSULTANT QUESTIONNAIRE
. 5 5 5 5 5 5
(MAX 5 Points) Grand Total:
TOTAL POINTS: 80 99 100 95 97 99 570




AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS FEE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this //th day
of March 2025 by and between Navajo County hereinafter referred to as "NAVAJO
COUNTY"), and The Mahoney Group an Arizona corporation doing business as The
Mahoney Group (hereinafter referred to as "TMG"). This agreement will commence on
April 1, 2025.

WHEREAS, NAVAJO COUNTY, desires to engage with TMG to render certain
professional services related to Employee Benefits Consultant, Navajo County RFQ
B24-12-013.

WHEREAS, NAVAJO COUNTY, understands the fee set forth in this
Agreement is in addition to commissions TMG receives for the Voluntary Individual
and/or Group Policies (i.e. accident, critical illness, gap, etc.) of NAVAJO COUNTY.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual obligations
herein, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

1. Scope of Services. TMG shall perform the following services related to
Employee Benefits Consultant, Navajo County RFQ B24-12-013(hereinafter
referred to as the "Services") in a satisfactory and proper manner, as reasonably
determined by NAVAJO COUNTY:

A. Consulting

1. Provide on-going information, analysis and assistance regarding
health care and life insurance guidelines, legislation and trends.
2. Assist in the negotiation of rate adjustments and/or benefit changes

with the existing carriers on contract renewal dates, including
complete evaluation of all plan reserves, retention costs and plan

design.

3. Provide analysis for alternative funding methods and
recommendation for change, if advantageous.

4. Assist in determination of the need to bid existing group insurance
contracts, including third party administrators.

5. Assist and recommend risk management strategies to sustain

employee benefits and reduce total healthcare costs.
6. Employee Wellness programs.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



B. Technical Services

1. Assist in the review and negotiation of benefits contract provisions
with carrier to assure employee benefits and rights are protected.

2. Assist in developing strategies for the next renewal/contract period in a
manner, which assures Navajo County's interests are properly addressed.

3. Prepare reports that may be required to maintain historical information on
expenditures, rates and participation levels.

4. Assist on projecting the annual cost of benefits programs to determine
budgetary rates and amounts.

C. Serviceable Lines of Coverage

1. Assist in the review and negotiation of benefits contract provisions with
carrier to assure employee benefits and rights are protected.

2. Assist in developing strategies for the next renewal/contract period in a
manner, which assures Navajo County's interests are properly addressed.

3. Prepare reports that may be required to maintain historical information on
expenditures, rates and participation levels.

4. Assist on projecting the annual cost of benefits programs to determine
budgetary rates and amounts.

D. Open Enrollment Services

1. Assist with all open enrollment activities including employee meetings,
benefit counselor coordination, etc.

2. Assist in compiling and coordinating all communication materials on
behalf of Human Resources and other entities covered by the employee
benefit plans.

E. Comply with the terms and conditions of the HIPAA Business Associate

Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. NAVAJO COUNTY'S Obligations. NAVAJO COUNTY agrees to the following:

A. Assist inobtaining data from the carriers.
B. Define direction and appropriate action to TMG.
C. Comply with the terms and conditions of the HIPAA Business Associate

Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

3. Time of Performance. Services of TMG shall commence on April 1, 2025 and shall

be undertaken and completed in such sequence as to assure their expeditious
completion in light of the purposes of this Agreement.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



4. Compensation and Method of Pavment.

A. This Agreement reflects a 12 month rate guarantee.

B. Compensation. For performing the Services specified in Section 1 hereof,
Navajo County agrees to have the selected Third-Party Administrator (TPA)
pay TMG $14.00 Per Employee Per Month.

C. Method of Payment. Such amounts shall be paid to TMG on the 1% day of
each month during the term of this Agreement.

D. Broker of Record. Consultant will receive the standard commissions, fees
and revenue on the ancillary lines that are currently in place. TMG will
manage (Serviceable Lines of Coverage) and services on behalf of Navajo
County.

5. Indemnity. TMG agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Navajo County and
its employees from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, or proceedings of
any kind brought against said parties for or on account of any matter arising solely
from the willful misconduct or negligent conduct, whether active or passive, on the
part of TMG or TMG’s employees, subconsultants or agents from the services
performed by TMG under this Agreement.

Navajo County agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless TMG and its
employees from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, or proceedings of any
kind arising solely from the willful misconduct or negligent conduct, whether active
or passive, on the part of Navajo County or Navajo County employees,
subconsultants or agents for or on account of any actions taken by Navajo County
under this Agreement.

6. Insurance. TMG shall procure and maintain at its expense, until final payment by
Navajo County for Services covered by this Agreement, Workers' Compensation
Insurance for TMG’s employees in accordance with the provisions of the Workers'
Compensation Act of the State of Arizona as now enacted or hereafter amended.

7. Reports and Information. At such times and in such forms as Navajo County may
reasonably require, there will be furnished to Navajo County such statements,
records, reports, data and information, as Navajo County may request pertaining to
matters covered by this Agreement. Unless authorized by Navajo County, or under
order of a court or administrative body, TMG will not release any information
concerning the work product including, but not limited to, any reports or other
documents prepared pursuant to this Agreement until the final product is submitted to
Navajo County.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Establishment and Maintenance of Electronic Records. Electronic Records shall
be maintained by TMG in accordance with applicable law and requirements
prescribed by Navajo County in writing with respect to all matters covered by this
Agreement. Except as otherwise authorized by Navajo County, such electronic
records shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after receipt of final
payment under this Agreement.

Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or
in part under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in
any other country. Navajo County shall have unrestricted authority to publish,
disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other
materials prepared under this Agreement.

Compliance with Laws. In performing the Services required hereunder, TMG shall
comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the Federal, State and local
governments.

Term. This Contract for Professional Service is valid for one (1) year from the date the
agreement was made between the two parties. Upon mutual agreement between the
parties, this contract may be renewed up to four (4) additional one-year terms.
Adjustments for inflation may be considered at renewal and will be mutually agreed upon
between parties.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement, along with HIPAA Business Associate
Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, represents the
entire agreement between Navajo County and TMG and supersedes all prior
negotiations, representations or agreements, either express or implied, written or oral
regarding this matter. It is mutually understood and agreed that no modification,
alteration or variation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be valid
unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto. Written and signed
amendments shall automatically become part of this Agreement, and shall supersede
any inconsistent provision therein; provided, however, that any apparent
inconsistency shall be resolved, if possible, by construing the provisions as mutually
complementary and supplementary.

Termination for Convenience of the Parties. Either party may terminate this
Agreement at any time and for any reason by giving at least sixty (60) days' notice in
writing to the other party. If termination occurs prematurely, both parties will review
the services performed in ratio to total compensationreceived and will agree upon a
final payment.

Confidentiality. TMG acknowledges that, in rendering Services hereunder, it may
have access to certain confidential records, telephone numbers, passwords, and data
which are proprietary information of Navajo County, or which Navajo County has an

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

ongoing obligation to keep confidential. TMG agrees to keep such information
confidential when it is clearly identified in writing as confidential by Navajo County,
and TMG and all its associates, shall maintain and protect the confidential nature
thereof except (1) to the extent necessary to perform its obligations hereunder, (i1) if
required by applicable law or by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (iii) if such
information became publicly available or available to or through a third party, but not
as a result of TMG’s act or omission.

Governing Law and Venue. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be
governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona. Any
action at law or in equity brought by either party for the purpose of enforcing a right
or rights provided for in this Agreement shall be tried in a court of competent jurisdiction
in Navajo County, State of Arizona. The parties hereby waive all provisions of law
providing for a change of venue in such proceeding to any other county. In the event
either party shall bring suit to enforce any term of this Agreement or to recover any
damages for and on account of the breach of any term or condition in this Agreement,
it is mutually agreed that the prevailing party in such action shall recover all costs
including: all litigation and appeal expenses, collection expenses, reasonable attorneys'
fees, necessary witness fees and court costs to be determined by the court in such
action.

Severability. Should any provision of this Agreement be held invalid, illegal, against
public policy or is otherwise enforceable by any governmental body, arbitrator, or
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not diminish the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof.

Authority to Enter Agreement. Each party expressly warrants and represents to the
other party that: (1) it is duly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement;
and (i1) it shall perform and observe the duties and obligations set forth in this
Agreement.

Binding Nature of Agreement; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, devisees, personal and
legal representatives, successors and assigns. No party shall assign its interest in this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

Notices. All notices, requests, demand and other communications required or
permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly given, made, and received when hand-delivered to the party addressed or upon the
date noted upon the receipt for registered or certified mail, first class postage prepaid,
return receipt requested, addressed as set forth below:

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



To: The Mahoney Group
Attn: Jason Andrade
1835 South Extension Road
Mesa, AZ. 85210

To: NAVAJO COUNTY:
Navajo County Government
Attn: Bryan Layton
PO Box 668
Holbrook, AZ 86025

20. Waiver. No failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise
thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any right,
power or privilege.

21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

22. Interpretation. The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes
only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement
and, therefore, in the event that any ambiguity or a question of intent or interpretation
arises, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or rule
requiring construction or interpretation against the party drafting any provision hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, NAVAJO COUNTY and TMG have executed this
Agreement as of the date first above written.

NAVAJO COUNTY THE MAHONEY GROUP:

By:
Vice-Chairman, Navajo County Board of Supervisors

Title:

Date: Date:

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



Exhibit A

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made effective April 1, 2025 by and between Navajo County, hereinafter
referred to as "Covered Entity", and The Mahoney Group, hereinafter referred to as
"Business Associate", (individually, a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 1 04-191, known as "the Administrative
Simplification provisions," direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop
standards to protect the security, confidentiality and integrity of health information; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of
Health and Human Services has issued regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164
(the "HIPAA Privacy Rule" and the "HIPAA Security Rule"); and

WHEREAS, Title XIII of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, known as "the
HITECH Act" has amended HIPAA and the HIPAA regulations, including HIPAA's
Administrative Simplification provisions; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby
Business Associate will provide certain services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such
arrangement, Business Associate may be considered a "business associate" of Covered
Entity as defined in the HIPAA Privacy Rule; and

WHEREAS, Covered Entity is subject to the requirements under HIPAA and HITECH
which includes, but not limited to, the Security Breach Notification; and

WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to Protected Health Information (as
defined below) in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties' continuing obligations under the HIPAA
Privacy Rule and Security Rule, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the provisions of this
Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Privacy Rule and Security
Rule and to protect the interests of both Parties

L. IN GENERAL

A. Definitions. Except as otherwise defined herein, any and all capitalized terms
in this Section shall have the definitions set forth in the HIPAA Privacy Rule
and the HIPAA Security Rule. In the event of an inconsistency between the

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA
Privacy Rule and Security Rule, as amended, the HIPAA Privacy Rule and
Security Rule shall control.

1. Business Associate. "Business Associate" shall generally have the same
meaning as the term "business associate" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in
reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean The Mahoney
Group.

2. Covered Entity. "Covered Entity" shall generally have the same
meaning as the term "covered entity" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in
reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean Navajo County.

3. HIPAA Rules. "HIPAA Rules" shall mean the Privacy, Security,
Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and
Part164.

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health
Information that is created or received by Covered Entity and disclosed or
made available in any form, including, but not limited to, paper record, oral
communication, audio recording, and electronic display by Covered Entity or
its operating units to Business Associate or is created or received by Business
Associate on Covered Entity's behalf shall be subject to this Agreement.

II. CONFIDENTIALITY REQUIREMENTS

III.  Business Associate agrees:

A.

B.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

To use or disclose any Protected Health Information as necessary to perform
the services set forth in the Agreement or as required by law.

To make uses and disclosures and requests for Protected Health Information
consistent with Covered Entity's minimum necessary policies and procedures.

At termination of this Agreement and upon written request of Covered Entity,
if feasible, return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from or
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that
Business Associate still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such
information, or if such return or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate
will extend the protections of this Agreement to the information in perpetuity
and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return
or destruction of the information not feasible; and

To ensure that its agents, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides
Protected Health Information received from or created by Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity, agree to the same restrictions and conditions that
apply to Business Associate with respect to such information. In addition,
Business Associate agrees to take reasonable steps to ensure that its



employees' actions or omissions do not cause Business Associate to breach
the terms of this Agreement or the mandatory requirements of the HIPAA
Privacy Rule and Security Rule that apply to Business Associate.

Not to use or disclose Protected Health Information in a manner that would
violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 if done by Covered Entity, except that
Business Associate may use and disclose Protected Health Information as
follows:

1. Use. Business Associate may use the PHI in its possession for its
proper management and administration of Business Associate or to
carry out the legal responsibilities of Business Associate;

2. Disclosure. Business Associate may disclose the PHI in its possession,
if necessary, for the proper management and administration of
Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of Business
Associate, provided that as to any such disclosure, the following
requirements are met:

a. the disclosure is permitted or required by law; or

b. Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the
person to whom the information is disclosed that the
information will remain confidential and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it
was disclosed to the person, and the person or party notifies
Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in
which the confidentiality of the information has been breached;

3. Data Aggregation. Business Associate may provide data aggregation
services relating to the health care operations of Covered Entity.

4. De-identification. Business Associate may de-identify any and all PHI
obtained by it under this Agreement, and use such de-identified data,
all in accordance with the de-identification requirements of the Privacy
Rule.

Business Associate will implement appropriate safeguards to prevent use or
disclosure of Protected Health Information other than as permitted in this
Agreement.

IV. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

A.

B.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

Business Associate agrees to not use or disclose Protected Health Information
other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as required by law

Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards and comply with
Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to Electronic Protected Health
Information, to prevent use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information
other than as provided for by this Agreement.

Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any Use or Disclosure



of PHI not provided for by this Agreement of which Business Associate
becomes aware, including Breaches of Unsecured Protected Health
Information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any Security Incident of
which it becomes aware. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent
practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or
disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business Associate in violation
of the requirements of this Agreement.

In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(i1) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable,
Business Associate agrees to ensure that any subcontractors that create,
receive, maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information on behalf of the
business associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements
that apply to Business Associate with respect to such information.

Business Associate agrees to make available Protected Health Information in
a designated record set to the Covered Entity as necessary to satisfy covered
entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.524.

Business Associate agrees to make any amendment(s) to Protected Health
Information in a Designated Record Set as directed or agreed to by the
covered entity pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, or take other measures as
necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.526

Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and records
available to the Secretary, or a person designated by the Secretary, for
purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

Business Associate agrees maintain and make available the information
required to provide an accounting of disclosures to the Covered Entity as
necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.528.

To the extent Business Associate is to carry out one or more of Covered
Entity's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the
requirements of Subpart E that apply to Covered Entity in the performance of
such obligation(s).

V. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY

A.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in
any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA, HITECH, the
HIPAA Privacy Rule, the HIPAA Security Rule or the Breach Notification
Rule. Further, Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to make
any acts or omissions that would not be permissible under the False Claims
Act or the Red Flags Rule.

Covered Entity agrees to timely notify Business Associate, in writing, of any
arrangements between Covered Entity and an individual who is the subject of
PHI that may impact in any manner the Use or Disclosure of that PHI by

10



Business Associate under this Agreement.

VL. TERMINATION

A.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either party shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately if either party has
breached any provision of this Agreement, and upon written notice of the
breach, the violating party fails to cure the breach within 30 calendar days
after receipt of notice. If the breach has not been cured, and it's been
determined that termination of the Agreement is not feasible, both parties
understand a report of such breach shall be submitted to the U.S. Department
of Health & Human Services.

Termination Without Cause: Either party may terminate this Agreement
effective upon sixty (60) days (fully Insured groups)/ ninety (90) days
(self-funded groups) advance written notice to the other party.

vi. MISCELLANEOUS

A.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only

Except as expressly stated herein or in the HIPAA Privacy Rule or Security
Rule, the parties to this Agreement do not intend to create any rights in any
third parties. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall
survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, and/or
the business relationship of the parties, and shall continue to bind Business
Associate, its agents, employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set
forth herein.

This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by
the Parties. No Party may assign its respective rights and obligations under
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party. None
of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will they be
deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of
independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purposes of
effecting the provisions of this Agreement and any other agreements
between the Parties evidencing their business relationship. This
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. No
change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any
one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any
continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any
obligation, on any other occasion. The parties agree that, in the event that
any documentation of the arrangement pursuant to which Business
Associate provides services to Covered Entity contains provisions relating
to the use or disclosure of Protected Health Information which are more
restrictive than the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of the
more restrictive documentation will control. The provisions of this
Agreement are intended to establish the minimum requirements regarding

11



Business Associate's use and disclosure of Protected Health Information.

C. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. In
addition, in the event a party believes in good faith that any provision of
this Agreement fails to comply with the then-current requirements of the
HIPAA Privacy Rule or Security Rule, such party shall notify the other
party in writing.

All notices shall be addressed to the appropriate Party as follows:

Navajo County: If to Business Associate:
Navajo County Government The Mahoney Group

Attn: Bryan Layton, Assistant Attn: Steve Goble, President
County Manager 1835 South Extension Road
P.O. Box 668 Mesa, AZ. 85210

Holbrook, AZ 86025

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year written above.

COVERED ENTITY The Mahoney Group (BUSINESS
ASSOCIATE):
By:
Vice-Chairman, Navajo County Board of Supervisors
Title:
Date: Date:
12

Navajo County - For Official Use Only



ATTACHMENT D - OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE

TO NAVAJO COUNTY:

The Undersigned hereby offers and shall furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms, scope of
work, conditions, specifications, and addendums in the Request for Qualifications which is incorporated by

reference as if fully set forth herein.

The Mahoney Group

For clarification of this offer, contact:

Jason Andrade

Company Name Name

1835 S. Extension Rd 480-214-2744
Address Phone

Mesa AZ 85210 623-215-1388
City State Zip Fax

jandrade@mahoneygroup.com

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign

Jason Andrade

Printed Name

EB Practice Leader

Title

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER

The offer is hereby accepted.

E-Mail

The Vendor is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in Employee Benefits Consultant, RFQ No.
B24-12-013 including all terms, conditions, specifications, addenda’s, etc., and the Vendor’s Offer as accepted by

Navajo County.

The Vendor has been cautioned not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under
this contract until Vendor receives this signed sheet, or written notice to proceed.

Awarded this day of

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

RFQ B24-12-013 Employee Benefits Consultant

The Mahoney Group

26



Board of Supervisors Regular 4. a.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: B25-01-010 Supply of Various Roadway Materials

Submitted For: Madhav Mundle, Public Works Director

Submitted By: Alexandria Porras, Administrative Specialist

Department:  Public Works
Presented By: Madhav Mundle

Motion before the Board:

Consideration of award of contract #B25-01-010 Supply of Various Roadway Materials to Brimhall Sand,
Rock & Building Materials Inc., WW Clyde Co., Perkins Aggregates, Inc., Perkins Cinders, Inc. and
Schuck Development effective March 28, 2025.

Background:

The purpose of this annual contract is to supply Navajo County's road maintenance operation with basic
materials required for maintaining and repairing roadways, drainage structures, and spreading cinders as
part of its snow response activities. Sealed proposals were received by the Board of Supervisors at the
Navajo County Governmental Center, Holbrook, Arizona until 3:00 p.m. M.S.T, February 26,2025, in
strict accordance with the specifications on file in the office of the Navajo County Public Works. No bids
were accepted after 3:00 p.m. M.S.T. The bids were publicly opened and read aloud at 3:15 p.m. This is
an annual "multi-award" contract for roadway materials which are purchased based on price, convenience,
availability and/or quality. The award of contracts to all bidders allows adequate coverage for road
materials by location.

Recommendation:
Staff is recommending award of contract to all bidders.

Fiscal Impact

Fiscal Year: FY 25/26
Budgeted Y/N: Y
Amount Requested:

Fiscal Impact:
Funds are budgeted for both fiscal year 2025 and 2026 under roadway maintenance.

Attachments
Bid Tab
Brimhall Contract
Perkins Aggregates Contract
Perkins Cinders Contract
Schuck Development Contract



WW Clyde Contract

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Jeanine Carruthers Jeanine Carruthers 02/27/2025 03:09 PM

Brandt Clark Brandt Clark 02/28/2025 08:44 AM

Public Works Director Madhav Mundle 02/28/2025 09:29 AM

Form Started By: Alexandria Porras Started On: 02/27/2025 02:37 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/28/2025



SUPPLY of VARIOUS ROADWAY MATERIALS

Must Select Lowest bidder based on price, convenience, availability, and/or quality.

CONTRACT #B25-01-010

Bkl S“::;’r;?:k SEEE W.W Clyde Perkins Aggregates, Inc. Perkins Cinders, Inc. Schuck Develop.
Material Picked Up PO Box 750 P.O. Box 127 1950 E. Adams, Ste A 1950 E. Adams, Ste C PO Box 21120 Price Comparisons
Snowflake, AZ 85937 Taylor, AZ 85939 Show Low, AZ 85901 Show Low, AZ 85901 Wickenburg, AZ 85358
DESCRIPTION EST MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U;'etr ::::e MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U::r ::::e MATERIAL | Unit Price Per | Average | Average | % Increase
QTy LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION Ton (Pickup) Price 2025 | Price 2024 | or Decrease
(Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup)
Show Low | $ 14.00
1) Aggregate Base Material, Class 2 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 15.65 Taylor $ 15.32 Show Low $ 15.96 $ 1457 14.24 2%
Taylor $ 11.90
Show Low | $ 12.00
2) Aggregate Base Material, Class 6 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 9.34 Taylor $ 12.04 Show Low $ 12.88 $ 10.63 10.77 -1%
Taylor $ 6.90
i Show Low | $ 14.00
3) Aggregate Base Material per MAG 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $  15.65 Taylor $ 1477| showtow |$  15.18 | Chevelon Butte| $ 1850 $  15.00 14.42 4%
Specifications 701 and 702
Taylor $ 11.90
4) Hot Asphaltic Concrete Mix: Show Low | $ 97.00
A) 0-100 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 106.40 $ 101.36 97.77 4%
Taylor $ 97.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
B) 100-500 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 104.30 $ 98.84 95.24 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
C) 500-1,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
D) 1,000 + Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
5) Plant Cold Mix 5,000 Tons Snowflake $ 130.08 Taylor $ 106.00 Show Low $ 117.07 $ 117.72 119.54 -2%
6) RipRap (6inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons IndianWells | §  48.00 | Showlow 1$  26.00 Taylor $ 3173| showiow |$ 2554 $ 3145| 3032 4%
Taylor $ 26.00
Stone B) 500 Tons #DIV/0! 26.00 #DIV/0!
7) RipRap (12inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 28.00 Taylor [ $ 32.83] Showlow | § 32.53 $ 35.34 31.09 14%
Stone B) 500 Tons
8) Rip Rap (24 inch) Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow | $ 30.00 Show Low $ 37.95 $ 38.65 36.86 5%
Stone B) 500 Tons
9) Rip Rap (36 inch) Basalt A) 4,000 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 32.00 Show Low $ 37.95 | Chevelon Butte| $ 28501 % 36.61 35.27 4%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons
Show Low | $ 40.00
10) Reject roadway material disposal Per Load $ 200.00 Taylor $ 40.00 Show Low $ 40.00 $ 7200 111.00 56%
Taylor $ 40.00
11) Snow Cinders (1/4" minus) 10,000 Tons Taylor $ 13.13 Show Low $ 7.59 $ 10.36 8.94 N/A
12) Reject Sand (4 Sieve minus) 1,000 Tons $ 8.50 Taylor $ 8.00 Taylor $ 17.51 Show Low 8.51 $ 10.63 10.47 2%
13) Blotter Material (ADOT Section 404-2.02) 1,000 Tons $ 17.88 Taylor $ 10.00 Taylor $ 19.70 Show Low 7.59 $ 13.79 13.35 N/A
14) Type A 3/8" Cover Aggregate 15,000 Tons § 1815 N Taylor $  19.48| ShowLow 19.16 $ 2072
Taylor $ 23.41
15) Type A 1/2" Cover Aggregate 5,000 Tons $ 3sagj—onowlow 1S _ 35.00 Taylor $  26.10| Show Low 26.52 $ 3219 N/A
Taylor | $ 35.00

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Material Delivered

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

o
DESCRIPTION GUANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézrzggs P’:‘i‘gggg . o/: l')“ecgfeaassee
16) Rip Rap (36 inch minus) Delivered to Winslow Levee
Basalt A) 4,000 Tons $ 79.38| $ 49.00 $ 64.19 52.63 22%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons $ 49.00 $ 49.00
17) 2-SACK AB Slurry Delivered to:
Winslow A) 300 C.Y. $ 203.85 203.85 $ 203.85 207.10 -2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, -, 300C.Y. $ 195.17 $ 19517 | 187.58] 4%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 174.57 2%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 300C.Y. $ 174.57 $ 174.57 172.40 1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 300 C.Y. $ 186.50 $ 186.50 182.16 2%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 172.40 3%
18) 2-SACK 3/8 in. Gravel Slurry
Winslow A) 500 C.Y. $ 201.68 $ 201.68 206.02 2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - 500 C.Y. $ 193.01 $ 193.01| 186.50] 3%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 500 C.Y. $ 195.66 $ 195.66 174.57 12%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 500 C.Y. $ 172.40 $ 172.40 172.40 0%
Heber/Overgaard E) 500 C.Y. $ 184.33 $ 184.33 183.25 1%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 500 C.Y. $ 175.66 $ 175.66 172.40 2%
19) Portland Cement Concrete (Class S, 2,500 psi)
Winslow A) 50 C.Y. $ 228.79 $ 228.79 238.55 -4%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - g, 50 C.Y. $ 220.11 $ 220.11 219.03 0%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 204.93 -1%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 50 C.Y. $ 199.51 $ 199.51 200.60 -1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 50 C.Y. $ 211.44 $ 211.44 211.44 0%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 200.60 1%

Delivery of Roadway Material

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

DESCRIPTION COANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézr;ggs P’:‘i‘;eerzg; :/r“ IIDnec:feaassee
20) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Heber/Overgaard| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 30.00 $§ 2250 20.30 11%
21) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Show Low| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 9.00 $ 12.00 13.41 -11%
22) Hauling Cover Aggregate Material Per Ton Per Mile
Hauling Location: “Various | 5,000 Tons $ 6.00 $  6.00 #DIV/0!

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into as of March 28, 2025 (the
“Effective Date”) by and between Navajo County (“County”) and Brimhall Sand & Rock &

Building Materials, Inc. (“Contractor”).

1. SCOPE OF WORK: Contractor shall furnish any and all materials, equipment and
labor required for performing all work for Supplying Various Roadway Materials,
Contract #B25-01-010, in accordance with the Contract Documents, in a workmanlike
manner to the satisfaction of County through its Engineers.

2. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents comprise this Contract and the
attached XI Notice of Invitation for Bids, [ Specifications, [ ] General Provisions,X
Special Provisions, XI Proposal dated February 24,2025, X Bidding Schedule, X Bid
Bond, [] Performance Bond, XI No Collusion Affidavit, X Subcontracting Certification,
[1 Plans, and addenda thereto, if any. If there is any conflict in the documents, this
Contract shall control over all others; the Specifications shall control over the General
Provisions and Special Provisions; and the Special Provisions shall control over the
General Provisions.

3. NO LIENS / TIME FOR COMPLETION: Contractor shall furnish all materials,
equipment and labor in accordance with the Contract Documents free and clear of all
claims, liens and charges whatsoever, within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal.

4. CANCELLATION: This Contract is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511, (concerning conflicts of interest).

5. PAYMENTS: Payment shall be made on the basis of the unit price(s) bid for the
awarded items in the Bidding Schedule for Contract # B25-01-010. Contractor shall
submit invoices to County for all work performed hereunder. No later than 30 days
after each invoice has been verified and approved by the Engineer, County shall pay
to Contractor 100% of the approved amount.

6. CERTIFICATIONS:

A. PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: Contractor certifies that neither it nor
its subcontractors are currently or will be engaged in, for the duration of this
Contract engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393 et seq.
Violation of this certification may result in an action by the County up to and
including termination of the Contract.

B. WRITTEN CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §35-394: Pursuant to
A.R.S. § 35-394, Contractor certifies that it is not currently using, and agrees for
the duration of this Agreement to not use (1) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs
in the People’s Republic of China; (2) any goods or services produced by the

C-1



forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; and (3) any
contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers that use the forced labor of ethnic
Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China. The Subrecipient further
acknowledges and agrees that (1) if the Subrecipient becomes aware during the
term of this Agreement that it is not in compliance with this certification that the
Subrecipient will notify the County within five (5) business days after becoming
aware of the noncompliance; and (2) if the Subrecipient does not provide the
County with a written certification that the Subrecipient has remedied the
noncompliance within one hundred eighty (180) after giving notice thereof, the
same shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, which shall then
terminate automatically, except that if the Agreement termination date occurs
before the end of the remedy period, this Agreement terminates on the
Agreement’s termination date. The County retains the legal right to inspect the
records of the Contractor and all Subcontractors to ensure compliance with this
certification for the duration of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have
executed this Contract as of the Effective Date.

NAVAJO COUNTY

CONTRACTOR
By
Chairman, Board of Company
Supervisors
By
Attest:
Print Name
Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board
Title

C-2



SUPPLY of VARIOUS ROADWAY MATERIALS

Must Select Lowest bidder based on price, convenience, availability, and/or quality.

CONTRACT #B25-01-010

Bkl S“::;’r;?:k SEEE W.W Clyde Perkins Aggregates, Inc. Perkins Cinders, Inc. Schuck Develop.
Material Picked Up PO Box 750 P.O. Box 127 1950 E. Adams, Ste A 1950 E. Adams, Ste C PO Box 21120 Price Comparisons
Snowflake, AZ 85937 Taylor, AZ 85939 Show Low, AZ 85901 Show Low, AZ 85901 Wickenburg, AZ 85358
DESCRIPTION EST MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U;'etr ::::e MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U::r ::::e MATERIAL | Unit Price Per | Average | Average | % Increase
QTy LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION Ton (Pickup) Price 2025 | Price 2024 | or Decrease
(Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup)
Show Low | $ 14.00
1) Aggregate Base Material, Class 2 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 15.65 Taylor $ 15.32 Show Low $ 15.96 $ 1457 14.24 2%
Taylor $ 11.90
Show Low | $ 12.00
2) Aggregate Base Material, Class 6 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 9.34 Taylor $ 12.04 Show Low $ 12.88 $ 10.63 10.77 -1%
Taylor $ 6.90
i Show Low | $ 14.00
3) Aggregate Base Material per MAG 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $  15.65 Taylor $ 1477| showtow |$  15.18 | Chevelon Butte| $ 1850 $  15.00 14.42 4%
Specifications 701 and 702
Taylor $ 11.90
4) Hot Asphaltic Concrete Mix: Show Low | $ 97.00
A) 0-100 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 106.40 $ 101.36 97.77 4%
Taylor $ 97.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
B) 100-500 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 104.30 $ 98.84 95.24 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
C) 500-1,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
D) 1,000 + Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
5) Plant Cold Mix 5,000 Tons Snowflake $ 130.08 Taylor $ 106.00 Show Low $ 117.07 $ 117.72 119.54 -2%
6) RipRap (6inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons IndianWells | §  48.00 | Showlow 1$  26.00 Taylor $ 3173| showiow |$ 2554 $ 3145| 3032 4%
Taylor $ 26.00
Stone B) 500 Tons #DIV/0! 26.00 #DIV/0!
7) RipRap (12inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 28.00 Taylor [ $ 32.83] Showlow | § 32.53 $ 35.34 31.09 14%
Stone B) 500 Tons
8) Rip Rap (24 inch) Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow | $ 30.00 Show Low $ 37.95 $ 38.65 36.86 5%
Stone B) 500 Tons
9) Rip Rap (36 inch) Basalt A) 4,000 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 32.00 Show Low $ 37.95 | Chevelon Butte| $ 28501 % 36.61 35.27 4%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons
Show Low | $ 40.00
10) Reject roadway material disposal Per Load $ 200.00 Taylor $ 40.00 Show Low $ 40.00 $ 7200 111.00 56%
Taylor $ 40.00
11) Snow Cinders (1/4" minus) 10,000 Tons Taylor $ 13.13 Show Low $ 7.59 $ 10.36 8.94 N/A
12) Reject Sand (4 Sieve minus) 1,000 Tons $ 8.50 Taylor $ 8.00 Taylor $ 17.51 Show Low 8.51 $ 10.63 10.47 2%
13) Blotter Material (ADOT Section 404-2.02) 1,000 Tons $ 17.88 Taylor $ 10.00 Taylor $ 19.70 Show Low 7.59 $ 13.79 13.35 N/A
14) Type A 3/8" Cover Aggregate 15,000 Tons § 1815 N Taylor $  19.48| ShowLow 19.16 $ 2072
Taylor $ 23.41
15) Type A 1/2" Cover Aggregate 5,000 Tons $ 3sagj—onowlow 1S _ 35.00 Taylor $  26.10| Show Low 26.52 $ 3219 N/A
Taylor | $ 35.00

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Material Delivered

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

o
DESCRIPTION GUANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézrzggs P’:‘i‘gggg . o/: l')“ecgfeaassee
16) Rip Rap (36 inch minus) Delivered to Winslow Levee
Basalt A) 4,000 Tons $ 79.38| $ 49.00 $ 64.19 52.63 22%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons $ 49.00 $ 49.00
17) 2-SACK AB Slurry Delivered to:
Winslow A) 300 C.Y. $ 203.85 203.85 $ 203.85 207.10 -2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, -, 300C.Y. $ 195.17 $ 19517 | 187.58] 4%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 174.57 2%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 300C.Y. $ 174.57 $ 174.57 172.40 1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 300 C.Y. $ 186.50 $ 186.50 182.16 2%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 172.40 3%
18) 2-SACK 3/8 in. Gravel Slurry
Winslow A) 500 C.Y. $ 201.68 $ 201.68 206.02 2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - 500 C.Y. $ 193.01 $ 193.01| 186.50] 3%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 500 C.Y. $ 195.66 $ 195.66 174.57 12%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 500 C.Y. $ 172.40 $ 172.40 172.40 0%
Heber/Overgaard E) 500 C.Y. $ 184.33 $ 184.33 183.25 1%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 500 C.Y. $ 175.66 $ 175.66 172.40 2%
19) Portland Cement Concrete (Class S, 2,500 psi)
Winslow A) 50 C.Y. $ 228.79 $ 228.79 238.55 -4%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - g, 50 C.Y. $ 220.11 $ 220.11 219.03 0%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 204.93 -1%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 50 C.Y. $ 199.51 $ 199.51 200.60 -1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 50 C.Y. $ 211.44 $ 211.44 211.44 0%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 200.60 1%

Delivery of Roadway Material

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

DESCRIPTION COANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézr;ggs P’:‘i‘;eerzg; :/r“ IIDnec:feaassee
20) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Heber/Overgaard| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 30.00 $§ 2250 20.30 11%
21) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Show Low| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 9.00 $ 12.00 13.41 -11%
22) Hauling Cover Aggregate Material Per Ton Per Mile
Hauling Location: “Various | 5,000 Tons $ 6.00 $  6.00 #DIV/0!

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into as of March 28, 2025 (the

“Effective Date”) by and between Navajo County (“County”) and Perkins Aggregates, Inc.

(“Contractor”).

. SCOPE OF WORK: Contractor shall furnish any and all materials, equipment and
labor required for performing all work for Supplying Various Roadway Materials,
Contract #B25-01-010, in accordance with the Contract Documents, in a workmanlike
manner to the satisfaction of County through its Engineers.

. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents comprise this Contract and the
attached XI Notice of Invitation for Bids, [ Specifications, [ ] General Provisions,X
Special Provisions, XI Proposal dated February 24,2025, X Bidding Schedule, X Bid
Bond, [] Performance Bond, XI No Collusion Affidavit, X Subcontracting Certification,
[1 Plans, and addenda thereto, if any. If there is any conflict in the documents, this
Contract shall control over all others; the Specifications shall control over the General
Provisions and Special Provisions; and the Special Provisions shall control over the
General Provisions.

. NO LIENS / TIME FOR COMPLETION: Contractor shall furnish all materials,
equipment and labor in accordance with the Contract Documents free and clear of all
claims, liens and charges whatsoever, within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal.

. CANCELLATION: This Contract is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511, (concerning conflicts of interest).

. PAYMENTS: Payment shall be made on the basis of the unit price(s) bid for the
awarded items in the Bidding Schedule for Contract # B25-01-010. Contractor shall
submit invoices to County for all work performed hereunder. No later than 30 days
after each invoice has been verified and approved by the Engineer, County shall pay
to Contractor 100% of the approved amount.

. CERTIFICATIONS:

A. PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: Contractor certifies that neither it nor
its subcontractors are currently or will be engaged in, for the duration of this
Contract engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393 et seq.
Violation of this certification may result in an action by the County up to and
including termination of the Contract.

B. WRITTEN CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §35-394: Pursuant to
A.R.S. § 35-394, Contractor certifies that it is not currently using, and agrees for
the duration of this Agreement to not use (1) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs
in the People’s Republic of China; (2) any goods or services produced by the

C-1



forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; and (3) any
contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers that use the forced labor of ethnic
Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China. The Subrecipient further
acknowledges and agrees that (1) if the Subrecipient becomes aware during the
term of this Agreement that it is not in compliance with this certification that the
Subrecipient will notify the County within five (5) business days after becoming
aware of the noncompliance; and (2) if the Subrecipient does not provide the
County with a written certification that the Subrecipient has remedied the
noncompliance within one hundred eighty (180) after giving notice thereof, the
same shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, which shall then
terminate automatically, except that if the Agreement termination date occurs
before the end of the remedy period, this Agreement terminates on the
Agreement’s termination date. The County retains the legal right to inspect the
records of the Contractor and all Subcontractors to ensure compliance with this
certification for the duration of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have
executed this Contract as of the Effective Date.

NAVAJO COUNTY

CONTRACTOR
By
Chairman, Board of Company
Supervisors
By
Attest:
Print Name
Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board
Title

C-2



SUPPLY of VARIOUS ROADWAY MATERIALS

Must Select Lowest bidder based on price, convenience, availability, and/or quality.

CONTRACT #B25-01-010

Bkl S“::;’r;?:k SEEE W.W Clyde Perkins Aggregates, Inc. Perkins Cinders, Inc. Schuck Develop.
Material Picked Up PO Box 750 P.O. Box 127 1950 E. Adams, Ste A 1950 E. Adams, Ste C PO Box 21120 Price Comparisons
Snowflake, AZ 85937 Taylor, AZ 85939 Show Low, AZ 85901 Show Low, AZ 85901 Wickenburg, AZ 85358
DESCRIPTION EST MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U;'etr ::::e MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U::r ::::e MATERIAL | Unit Price Per | Average | Average | % Increase
QTy LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION Ton (Pickup) Price 2025 | Price 2024 | or Decrease
(Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup)
Show Low | $ 14.00
1) Aggregate Base Material, Class 2 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 15.65 Taylor $ 15.32 Show Low $ 15.96 $ 1457 14.24 2%
Taylor $ 11.90
Show Low | $ 12.00
2) Aggregate Base Material, Class 6 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 9.34 Taylor $ 12.04 Show Low $ 12.88 $ 10.63 10.77 -1%
Taylor $ 6.90
i Show Low | $ 14.00
3) Aggregate Base Material per MAG 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $  15.65 Taylor $ 1477| showtow |$  15.18 | Chevelon Butte| $ 1850 $  15.00 14.42 4%
Specifications 701 and 702
Taylor $ 11.90
4) Hot Asphaltic Concrete Mix: Show Low | $ 97.00
A) 0-100 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 106.40 $ 101.36 97.77 4%
Taylor $ 97.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
B) 100-500 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 104.30 $ 98.84 95.24 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
C) 500-1,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
D) 1,000 + Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
5) Plant Cold Mix 5,000 Tons Snowflake $ 130.08 Taylor $ 106.00 Show Low $ 117.07 $ 117.72 119.54 -2%
6) RipRap (6inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons IndianWells | §  48.00 | Showlow 1$  26.00 Taylor $ 3173| showiow |$ 2554 $ 3145| 3032 4%
Taylor $ 26.00
Stone B) 500 Tons #DIV/0! 26.00 #DIV/0!
7) RipRap (12inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 28.00 Taylor [ $ 32.83] Showlow | § 32.53 $ 35.34 31.09 14%
Stone B) 500 Tons
8) Rip Rap (24 inch) Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow | $ 30.00 Show Low $ 37.95 $ 38.65 36.86 5%
Stone B) 500 Tons
9) Rip Rap (36 inch) Basalt A) 4,000 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 32.00 Show Low $ 37.95 | Chevelon Butte| $ 28501 % 36.61 35.27 4%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons
Show Low | $ 40.00
10) Reject roadway material disposal Per Load $ 200.00 Taylor $ 40.00 Show Low $ 40.00 $ 7200 111.00 56%
Taylor $ 40.00
11) Snow Cinders (1/4" minus) 10,000 Tons Taylor $ 13.13 Show Low $ 7.59 $ 10.36 8.94 N/A
12) Reject Sand (4 Sieve minus) 1,000 Tons $ 8.50 Taylor $ 8.00 Taylor $ 17.51 Show Low 8.51 $ 10.63 10.47 2%
13) Blotter Material (ADOT Section 404-2.02) 1,000 Tons $ 17.88 Taylor $ 10.00 Taylor $ 19.70 Show Low 7.59 $ 13.79 13.35 N/A
14) Type A 3/8" Cover Aggregate 15,000 Tons § 1815 N Taylor $  19.48| ShowLow 19.16 $ 2072
Taylor $ 23.41
15) Type A 1/2" Cover Aggregate 5,000 Tons $ 3sagj—onowlow 1S _ 35.00 Taylor $  26.10| Show Low 26.52 $ 3219 N/A
Taylor | $ 35.00

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Material Delivered

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

o
DESCRIPTION GUANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézrzggs P’:‘i‘gggg . o/: l')“ecgfeaassee
16) Rip Rap (36 inch minus) Delivered to Winslow Levee
Basalt A) 4,000 Tons $ 79.38| $ 49.00 $ 64.19 52.63 22%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons $ 49.00 $ 49.00
17) 2-SACK AB Slurry Delivered to:
Winslow A) 300 C.Y. $ 203.85 203.85 $ 203.85 207.10 -2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, -, 300C.Y. $ 195.17 $ 19517 | 187.58] 4%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 174.57 2%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 300C.Y. $ 174.57 $ 174.57 172.40 1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 300 C.Y. $ 186.50 $ 186.50 182.16 2%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 172.40 3%
18) 2-SACK 3/8 in. Gravel Slurry
Winslow A) 500 C.Y. $ 201.68 $ 201.68 206.02 2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - 500 C.Y. $ 193.01 $ 193.01| 186.50] 3%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 500 C.Y. $ 195.66 $ 195.66 174.57 12%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 500 C.Y. $ 172.40 $ 172.40 172.40 0%
Heber/Overgaard E) 500 C.Y. $ 184.33 $ 184.33 183.25 1%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 500 C.Y. $ 175.66 $ 175.66 172.40 2%
19) Portland Cement Concrete (Class S, 2,500 psi)
Winslow A) 50 C.Y. $ 228.79 $ 228.79 238.55 -4%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - g, 50 C.Y. $ 220.11 $ 220.11 219.03 0%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 204.93 -1%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 50 C.Y. $ 199.51 $ 199.51 200.60 -1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 50 C.Y. $ 211.44 $ 211.44 211.44 0%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 200.60 1%

Delivery of Roadway Material

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

DESCRIPTION COANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézr;ggs P’:‘i‘;eerzg; :/r“ IIDnec:feaassee
20) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Heber/Overgaard| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 30.00 $§ 2250 20.30 11%
21) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Show Low| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 9.00 $ 12.00 13.41 -11%
22) Hauling Cover Aggregate Material Per Ton Per Mile
Hauling Location: “Various | 5,000 Tons $ 6.00 $  6.00 #DIV/0!

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into as of March 28, 2025 (the

“Effective Date”) by and between Navajo County (“County”) and Perkins Cinders, Inc.

(“Contractor”).

. SCOPE OF WORK: Contractor shall furnish any and all materials, equipment and
labor required for performing all work for Supplying Various Roadway Materials,
Contract #B25-01-010, in accordance with the Contract Documents, in a workmanlike
manner to the satisfaction of County through its Engineers.

. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents comprise this Contract and the
attached XI Notice of Invitation for Bids, [ Specifications, [ ] General Provisions,X
Special Provisions, XI Proposal dated February 24,2025, X Bidding Schedule, X Bid
Bond, [] Performance Bond, XI No Collusion Affidavit, X Subcontracting Certification,
[1 Plans, and addenda thereto, if any. If there is any conflict in the documents, this
Contract shall control over all others; the Specifications shall control over the General
Provisions and Special Provisions; and the Special Provisions shall control over the
General Provisions.

. NO LIENS / TIME FOR COMPLETION: Contractor shall furnish all materials,
equipment and labor in accordance with the Contract Documents free and clear of all
claims, liens and charges whatsoever, within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal.

. CANCELLATION: This Contract is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511, (concerning conflicts of interest).

. PAYMENTS: Payment shall be made on the basis of the unit price(s) bid for the
awarded items in the Bidding Schedule for Contract # B25-01-010. Contractor shall
submit invoices to County for all work performed hereunder. No later than 30 days
after each invoice has been verified and approved by the Engineer, County shall pay
to Contractor 100% of the approved amount.

. CERTIFICATIONS:

A. PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: Contractor certifies that neither it nor
its subcontractors are currently or will be engaged in, for the duration of this
Contract engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393 et seq.
Violation of this certification may result in an action by the County up to and
including termination of the Contract.

B. WRITTEN CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §35-394: Pursuant to
A.R.S. § 35-394, Contractor certifies that it is not currently using, and agrees for
the duration of this Agreement to not use (1) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs
in the People’s Republic of China; (2) any goods or services produced by the

C-1



forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; and (3) any
contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers that use the forced labor of ethnic
Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China. The Subrecipient further
acknowledges and agrees that (1) if the Subrecipient becomes aware during the
term of this Agreement that it is not in compliance with this certification that the
Subrecipient will notify the County within five (5) business days after becoming
aware of the noncompliance; and (2) if the Subrecipient does not provide the
County with a written certification that the Subrecipient has remedied the
noncompliance within one hundred eighty (180) after giving notice thereof, the
same shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, which shall then
terminate automatically, except that if the Agreement termination date occurs
before the end of the remedy period, this Agreement terminates on the
Agreement’s termination date. The County retains the legal right to inspect the
records of the Contractor and all Subcontractors to ensure compliance with this
certification for the duration of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have
executed this Contract as of the Effective Date.

NAVAJO COUNTY

CONTRACTOR
By
Chairman, Board of Company
Supervisors
By
Attest:
Print Name
Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board
Title

C-2



SUPPLY of VARIOUS ROADWAY MATERIALS

Must Select Lowest bidder based on price, convenience, availability, and/or quality.

CONTRACT #B25-01-010

Bkl S“::;’r;?:k SEEE W.W Clyde Perkins Aggregates, Inc. Perkins Cinders, Inc. Schuck Develop.
Material Picked Up PO Box 750 P.O. Box 127 1950 E. Adams, Ste A 1950 E. Adams, Ste C PO Box 21120 Price Comparisons
Snowflake, AZ 85937 Taylor, AZ 85939 Show Low, AZ 85901 Show Low, AZ 85901 Wickenburg, AZ 85358
DESCRIPTION EST MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U;'etr ::::e MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U::r ::::e MATERIAL | Unit Price Per | Average | Average | % Increase
QTy LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION Ton (Pickup) Price 2025 | Price 2024 | or Decrease
(Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup)
Show Low | $ 14.00
1) Aggregate Base Material, Class 2 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 15.65 Taylor $ 15.32 Show Low $ 15.96 $ 1457 14.24 2%
Taylor $ 11.90
Show Low | $ 12.00
2) Aggregate Base Material, Class 6 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 9.34 Taylor $ 12.04 Show Low $ 12.88 $ 10.63 10.77 -1%
Taylor $ 6.90
i Show Low | $ 14.00
3) Aggregate Base Material per MAG 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $  15.65 Taylor $ 1477| showtow |$  15.18 | Chevelon Butte| $ 1850 $  15.00 14.42 4%
Specifications 701 and 702
Taylor $ 11.90
4) Hot Asphaltic Concrete Mix: Show Low | $ 97.00
A) 0-100 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 106.40 $ 101.36 97.77 4%
Taylor $ 97.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
B) 100-500 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 104.30 $ 98.84 95.24 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
C) 500-1,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
D) 1,000 + Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
5) Plant Cold Mix 5,000 Tons Snowflake $ 130.08 Taylor $ 106.00 Show Low $ 117.07 $ 117.72 119.54 -2%
6) RipRap (6inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons IndianWells | §  48.00 | Showlow 1$  26.00 Taylor $ 3173| showiow |$ 2554 $ 3145| 3032 4%
Taylor $ 26.00
Stone B) 500 Tons #DIV/0! 26.00 #DIV/0!
7) RipRap (12inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 28.00 Taylor [ $ 32.83] Showlow | § 32.53 $ 35.34 31.09 14%
Stone B) 500 Tons
8) Rip Rap (24 inch) Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow | $ 30.00 Show Low $ 37.95 $ 38.65 36.86 5%
Stone B) 500 Tons
9) Rip Rap (36 inch) Basalt A) 4,000 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 32.00 Show Low $ 37.95 | Chevelon Butte| $ 28501 % 36.61 35.27 4%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons
Show Low | $ 40.00
10) Reject roadway material disposal Per Load $ 200.00 Taylor $ 40.00 Show Low $ 40.00 $ 7200 111.00 56%
Taylor $ 40.00
11) Snow Cinders (1/4" minus) 10,000 Tons Taylor $ 13.13 Show Low $ 7.59 $ 10.36 8.94 N/A
12) Reject Sand (4 Sieve minus) 1,000 Tons $ 8.50 Taylor $ 8.00 Taylor $ 17.51 Show Low 8.51 $ 10.63 10.47 2%
13) Blotter Material (ADOT Section 404-2.02) 1,000 Tons $ 17.88 Taylor $ 10.00 Taylor $ 19.70 Show Low 7.59 $ 13.79 13.35 N/A
14) Type A 3/8" Cover Aggregate 15,000 Tons § 1815 N Taylor $  19.48| ShowLow 19.16 $ 2072
Taylor $ 23.41
15) Type A 1/2" Cover Aggregate 5,000 Tons $ 3sagj—onowlow 1S _ 35.00 Taylor $  26.10| Show Low 26.52 $ 3219 N/A
Taylor | $ 35.00

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Material Delivered

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

o
DESCRIPTION GUANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézrzggs P’:‘i‘gggg . o/: l')“ecgfeaassee
16) Rip Rap (36 inch minus) Delivered to Winslow Levee
Basalt A) 4,000 Tons $ 79.38| $ 49.00 $ 64.19 52.63 22%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons $ 49.00 $ 49.00
17) 2-SACK AB Slurry Delivered to:
Winslow A) 300 C.Y. $ 203.85 203.85 $ 203.85 207.10 -2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, -, 300C.Y. $ 195.17 $ 19517 | 187.58] 4%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 174.57 2%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 300C.Y. $ 174.57 $ 174.57 172.40 1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 300 C.Y. $ 186.50 $ 186.50 182.16 2%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 172.40 3%
18) 2-SACK 3/8 in. Gravel Slurry
Winslow A) 500 C.Y. $ 201.68 $ 201.68 206.02 2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - 500 C.Y. $ 193.01 $ 193.01| 186.50] 3%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 500 C.Y. $ 195.66 $ 195.66 174.57 12%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 500 C.Y. $ 172.40 $ 172.40 172.40 0%
Heber/Overgaard E) 500 C.Y. $ 184.33 $ 184.33 183.25 1%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 500 C.Y. $ 175.66 $ 175.66 172.40 2%
19) Portland Cement Concrete (Class S, 2,500 psi)
Winslow A) 50 C.Y. $ 228.79 $ 228.79 238.55 -4%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - g, 50 C.Y. $ 220.11 $ 220.11 219.03 0%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 204.93 -1%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 50 C.Y. $ 199.51 $ 199.51 200.60 -1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 50 C.Y. $ 211.44 $ 211.44 211.44 0%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 200.60 1%

Delivery of Roadway Material

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

DESCRIPTION COANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézr;ggs P’:‘i‘;eerzg; :/r“ IIDnec:feaassee
20) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Heber/Overgaard| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 30.00 $§ 2250 20.30 11%
21) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Show Low| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 9.00 $ 12.00 13.41 -11%
22) Hauling Cover Aggregate Material Per Ton Per Mile
Hauling Location: “Various | 5,000 Tons $ 6.00 $  6.00 #DIV/0!

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into as of March 28, 2025 (the

“Effective Date”) by and between Navajo County (“County”) and Schuck Development.

(“Contractor”).

. SCOPE OF WORK: Contractor shall furnish any and all materials, equipment and
labor required for performing all work for Supplying Various Roadway Materials,
Contract #B25-01-010, in accordance with the Contract Documents, in a workmanlike
manner to the satisfaction of County through its Engineers.

. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents comprise this Contract and the
attached XI Notice of Invitation for Bids, [ Specifications, [ ] General Provisions,X
Special Provisions, XI Proposal dated February 7,2025, X Bidding Schedule, X Bid
Bond, [] Performance Bond, XI No Collusion Affidavit, X Subcontracting Certification,
[1 Plans, and addenda thereto, if any. If there is any conflict in the documents, this
Contract shall control over all others; the Specifications shall control over the General
Provisions and Special Provisions; and the Special Provisions shall control over the
General Provisions.

. NO LIENS / TIME FOR COMPLETION: Contractor shall furnish all materials,
equipment and labor in accordance with the Contract Documents free and clear of all
claims, liens and charges whatsoever, within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal.

. CANCELLATION: This Contract is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511, (concerning conflicts of interest).

. PAYMENTS: Payment shall be made on the basis of the unit price(s) bid for the
awarded items in the Bidding Schedule for Contract # B25-01-010. Contractor shall
submit invoices to County for all work performed hereunder. No later than 30 days
after each invoice has been verified and approved by the Engineer, County shall pay
to Contractor 100% of the approved amount.

. CERTIFICATIONS:

A. PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: Contractor certifies that neither it nor
its subcontractors are currently or will be engaged in, for the duration of this
Contract engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393 et seq.
Violation of this certification may result in an action by the County up to and
including termination of the Contract.

B. WRITTEN CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §35-394: Pursuant to
A.R.S. § 35-394, Contractor certifies that it is not currently using, and agrees for
the duration of this Agreement to not use (1) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs
in the People’s Republic of China; (2) any goods or services produced by the

C-1



forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; and (3) any
contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers that use the forced labor of ethnic
Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China. The Subrecipient further
acknowledges and agrees that (1) if the Subrecipient becomes aware during the
term of this Agreement that it is not in compliance with this certification that the
Subrecipient will notify the County within five (5) business days after becoming
aware of the noncompliance; and (2) if the Subrecipient does not provide the
County with a written certification that the Subrecipient has remedied the
noncompliance within one hundred eighty (180) after giving notice thereof, the
same shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, which shall then
terminate automatically, except that if the Agreement termination date occurs
before the end of the remedy period, this Agreement terminates on the
Agreement’s termination date. The County retains the legal right to inspect the
records of the Contractor and all Subcontractors to ensure compliance with this
certification for the duration of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have
executed this Contract as of the Effective Date.

NAVAJO COUNTY

CONTRACTOR
By
Chairman, Board of Company
Supervisors
By
Attest:
Print Name
Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board
Title

C-2



SUPPLY of VARIOUS ROADWAY MATERIALS

Must Select Lowest bidder based on price, convenience, availability, and/or quality.

CONTRACT #B25-01-010

Bkl Sl\::t(:ril::k SEEE W.W Clyde Perkins Aggregates, Inc. Perkins Cinders, Inc. Schuck Develop.
Material Picked Up PO Box 750 P.O. Box 127 1950 E. Adams, Ste A 1950 E. Adams, Ste C PO Box 21120 Price Comparisons
Snowflake, AZ 85937 Taylor, AZ 85939 Show Low, AZ 85901 Show Low, AZ 85901 Wickenburg, AZ 85358
DESCRIPTION EST MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U;'etr ::::e MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U::r ::::e MATERIAL | Unit Price Per | Average | Average | % Increase
QTy LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION Ton (Pickup) Price 2025 | Price 2024 | or Decrease
(Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup)
Show Low | $ 14.00
1) Aggregate Base Material, Class 2 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 15.65 Taylor $ 15.32 Show Low $ 15.96 $ 1457 14.24 2%
Taylor $ 11.90
Show Low | $ 12.00
2) Aggregate Base Material, Class 6 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 9.34 Taylor $ 12.04 Show Low $ 12.88 $ 10.63 10.77 -1%
Taylor $ 6.90
i Show Low | $ 14.00
3) Aggregate Base Material per MAG 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $  15.65 Taylor $ 1477| showiow |$  15.18 | Chevelon Butte| $ 1850 $  15.00 14.42 4%
Specifications 701 and 702
Taylor $ 11.90
4) Hot Asphaltic Concrete Mix: Show Low | $ 97.00
A) 0-100 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 106.40 $ 101.36 97.77 4%
Taylor $ 97.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
B) 100-500 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 104.30 $ 98.84 95.24 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
C) 500-1,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
D) 1,000 + Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
5) Plant Cold Mix 5,000 Tons Snowflake $ 130.08 Taylor $ 106.00 Show Low $ 117.07 $ 117.72 119.54 -2%
6) RipRap (6inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons IndianWells | §  48.00 | Showlow 1$  26.00 Taylor $ 3173| showiow |$ 2554 $ 3145| 3032 4%
Taylor $ 26.00
Stone B) 500 Tons #DIV/0! 26.00 #DIV/0!
7) RipRap (12inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 28.00 Taylor [ $ 32.83] Showlow | § 32.53 $ 35.34 31.09 14%
Stone B) 500 Tons
8) Rip Rap (24 inch) Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow | $ 30.00 Show Low $ 37.95 $ 38.65 36.86 5%
Stone B) 500 Tons
9) Rip Rap (36 inch) Basalt A) 4,000 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 32.00 Show Low $ 37.95 | Chevelon Butte| $ 28501 % 36.61 35.27 4%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons
Show Low | $ 40.00
10) Reject roadway material disposal Per Load $ 200.00 Taylor $ 40.00 Show Low $ 40.00 $ 72.00 111.00 56%
Taylor $ 40.00
11) Snow Cinders (1/4" minus) 10,000 Tons Taylor $ 13.13 Show Low $ 7.59 $ 10.36 8.94 N/A
12) Reject Sand (4 Sieve minus) 1,000 Tons $ 8.50 Taylor $ 8.00 Taylor $ 17.51 Show Low 8.51 $ 10.63 10.47 2%
13) Blotter Material (ADOT Section 404-2.02) 1,000 Tons $ 17.88 Taylor $ 10.00 Taylor $ 19.70 Show Low 7.59 $ 13.79 13.35 N/A
14) Type A 3/8" Cover Aggregate 15,000 Tons § 1815 N Taylor $  19.48| ShowLow 19.16 $ 2072
Taylor $ 23.41
15) Type A 1/2" Cover Aggregate 5,000 Tons $ 3sagj—onowlow 1S _ 35.00 Taylor $  26.10| Show Low 26.52 $ 3219 N/A
Taylor | $ 35.00

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Material Delivered

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

o
DESCRIPTION GUANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézrzggs P’:‘i‘gggg . o/: l')“ecgfeaassee
16) Rip Rap (36 inch minus) Delivered to Winslow Levee
Basalt A) 4,000 Tons $ 79.38| $ 49.00 $ 64.19 52.63 22%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons $ 49.00 $ 49.00
17) 2-SACK AB Slurry Delivered to:
Winslow A) 300 C.Y. $ 203.85 203.85 $ 203.85 207.10 -2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, -, 300C.Y. $ 195.17 $ 19517 | 187.58] 4%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 174.57 2%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 300C.Y. $ 174.57 $ 174.57 172.40 1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 300 C.Y. $ 186.50 $ 186.50 182.16 2%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 172.40 3%
18) 2-SACK 3/8 in. Gravel Slurry
Winslow A) 500 C.Y. $ 201.68 $ 201.68 206.02 2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - 500 C.Y. $ 193.01 $ 193.01| 186.50] 3%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 500 C.Y. $ 195.66 $ 195.66 174.57 12%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 500 C.Y. $ 172.40 $ 172.40 172.40 0%
Heber/Overgaard E) 500 C.Y. $ 184.33 $ 184.33 183.25 1%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 500 C.Y. $ 175.66 $ 175.66 172.40 2%
19) Portland Cement Concrete (Class S, 2,500 psi)
Winslow A) 50 C.Y. $ 228.79 $ 228.79 238.55 -4%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - g, 50 C.Y. $ 220.11 $ 220.11 219.03 0%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 204.93 -1%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 50 C.Y. $ 199.51 $ 199.51 200.60 -1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 50 C.Y. $ 211.44 $ 211.44 211.44 0%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 200.60 1%

Delivery of Roadway Material

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

DESCRIPTION COANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézr;ggs P’:‘i‘;eerzg; :/r“ IIDnec:feaassee
20) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Heber/Overgaard| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 30.00 $§ 2250 20.30 11%
21) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Show Low| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 9.00 $ 12.00 13.41 -11%
22) Hauling Cover Aggregate Material Per Ton Per Mile
Hauling Location: “Various | 5,000 Tons $ 6.00 $  6.00 #DIV/0!

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into as of March 28, 2025 (the

‘Effective Date”) by and between Navajo County (“County”) and WW Clyde & Co.

(“Contractor”).

. SCOPE OF WORK: Contractor shall furnish any and all materials, equipment and
labor required for performing all work for Supplying Various Roadway Materials,
Contract #B25-01-010, in accordance with the Contract Documents, in a workmanlike
manner to the satisfaction of County through its Engineers.

. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents comprise this Contract and the
attached XI Notice of Invitation for Bids, [ Specifications, [ ] General Provisions,X
Special Provisions, XI Proposal dated February 25,2025, X Bidding Schedule, X Bid
Bond, [] Performance Bond, XI No Collusion Affidavit, X Subcontracting Certification,
[1 Plans, and addenda thereto, if any. If there is any conflict in the documents, this
Contract shall control over all others; the Specifications shall control over the General
Provisions and Special Provisions; and the Special Provisions shall control over the
General Provisions.

. NO LIENS / TIME FOR COMPLETION: Contractor shall furnish all materials,
equipment and labor in accordance with the Contract Documents free and clear of all
claims, liens and charges whatsoever, within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal.

. CANCELLATION: This Contract is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511, (concerning conflicts of interest).

. PAYMENTS: Payment shall be made on the basis of the unit price(s) bid for the
awarded items in the Bidding Schedule for Contract # B25-01-010. Contractor shall
submit invoices to County for all work performed hereunder. No later than 30 days
after each invoice has been verified and approved by the Engineer, County shall pay
to Contractor 100% of the approved amount.

. CERTIFICATIONS:

A. PROHIBITION OF BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL: Contractor certifies that neither it nor
its subcontractors are currently or will be engaged in, for the duration of this
Contract engage in, a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393 et seq.
Violation of this certification may result in an action by the County up to and
including termination of the Contract.

B. WRITTEN CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §35-394: Pursuant to
A.R.S. § 35-394, Contractor certifies that it is not currently using, and agrees for
the duration of this Agreement to not use (1) the forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs
in the People’s Republic of China; (2) any goods or services produced by the

C-1



forced labor of ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; and (3) any
contractors, subcontractors, or suppliers that use the forced labor of ethnic
Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China. The Subrecipient further
acknowledges and agrees that (1) if the Subrecipient becomes aware during the
term of this Agreement that it is not in compliance with this certification that the
Subrecipient will notify the County within five (5) business days after becoming
aware of the noncompliance; and (2) if the Subrecipient does not provide the
County with a written certification that the Subrecipient has remedied the
noncompliance within one hundred eighty (180) after giving notice thereof, the
same shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, which shall then
terminate automatically, except that if the Agreement termination date occurs
before the end of the remedy period, this Agreement terminates on the
Agreement’s termination date. The County retains the legal right to inspect the
records of the Contractor and all Subcontractors to ensure compliance with this
certification for the duration of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have
executed this Contract as of the Effective Date.

NAVAJO COUNTY

CONTRACTOR
By
Chairman, Board of Company
Supervisors
By
Attest:
Print Name
Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board
Title

C-2



SUPPLY of VARIOUS ROADWAY MATERIALS

Must Select Lowest bidder based on price, convenience, availability, and/or quality.

CONTRACT #B25-01-010

Bkl S“::;’r;?:k SEEE W.W Clyde Perkins Aggregates, Inc. Perkins Cinders, Inc. Schuck Develop.
Material Picked Up PO Box 750 P.O. Box 127 1950 E. Adams, Ste A 1950 E. Adams, Ste C PO Box 21120 Price Comparisons
Snowflake, AZ 85937 Taylor, AZ 85939 Show Low, AZ 85901 Show Low, AZ 85901 Wickenburg, AZ 85358
DESCRIPTION EST MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U;'etr ::::e MATERIAL U;:r :'::e MATERIAL U::r ::::e MATERIAL | Unit Price Per | Average | Average | % Increase
QTy LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION . LOCATION Ton (Pickup) Price 2025 | Price 2024 | or Decrease
(Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup) (Pickup)
Show Low | $ 14.00
1) Aggregate Base Material, Class 2 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 15.65 Taylor $ 15.32 Show Low $ 15.96 $ 1457 14.24 2%
Taylor $ 11.90
Show Low | $ 12.00
2) Aggregate Base Material, Class 6 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 9.34 Taylor $ 12.04 Show Low $ 12.88 $ 10.63 10.77 -1%
Taylor $ 6.90
i Show Low | $ 14.00
3) Aggregate Base Material per MAG 20,000 Tons Snowflake| $  15.65 Taylor $ 1477| showtow |$  15.18 | Chevelon Butte| $ 1850 $  15.00 14.42 4%
Specifications 701 and 702
Taylor $ 11.90
4) Hot Asphaltic Concrete Mix: Show Low | $ 97.00
A) 0-100 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 106.40 $ 101.36 97.77 4%
Taylor $ 97.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
B) 100-500 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 104.30 $ 98.84 95.24 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
C) 500-1,000 Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
Show Low | $ 93.00
D) 1,000 + Tons Snowflake| $ 105.05 Show Low $ 102.17 $ 98.31 94.71 4%
Taylor $ 93.00
5) Plant Cold Mix 5,000 Tons Snowflake $ 130.08 Taylor $ 106.00 Show Low $ 117.07 $ 117.72 119.54 -2%
6) RipRap (6inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons IndianWells | §  48.00 | Showlow 1$  26.00 Taylor $ 3173| showiow |$ 2554 $ 3145| 3032 4%
Taylor $ 26.00
Stone B) 500 Tons #DIV/0! 26.00 #DIV/0!
7) RipRap (12inch)  Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 28.00 Taylor [ $ 32.83] Showlow | § 32.53 $ 35.34 31.09 14%
Stone B) 500 Tons
8) Rip Rap (24 inch) Basalt A) 500 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow | $ 30.00 Show Low $ 37.95 $ 38.65 36.86 5%
Stone B) 500 Tons
9) Rip Rap (36 inch) Basalt A) 4,000 Tons Indian Wells | $ 48.00] Showlow [ $ 32.00 Show Low $ 37.95 | Chevelon Butte| $ 28501 % 36.61 35.27 4%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons
Show Low | $ 40.00
10) Reject roadway material disposal Per Load $ 200.00 Taylor $ 40.00 Show Low $ 40.00 $ 7200 111.00 56%
Taylor $ 40.00
11) Snow Cinders (1/4" minus) 10,000 Tons Taylor $ 13.13 Show Low $ 7.59 $ 10.36 8.94 N/A
12) Reject Sand (4 Sieve minus) 1,000 Tons $ 8.50 Taylor $ 8.00 Taylor $ 17.51 Show Low 8.51 $ 10.63 10.47 2%
13) Blotter Material (ADOT Section 404-2.02) 1,000 Tons $ 17.88 Taylor $ 10.00 Taylor $ 19.70 Show Low 7.59 $ 13.79 13.35 N/A
14) Type A 3/8" Cover Aggregate 15,000 Tons § 1815 N Taylor $  19.48| ShowLow 19.16 $ 2072
Taylor $ 23.41
15) Type A 1/2" Cover Aggregate 5,000 Tons $ 3sagj—onowlow 1S _ 35.00 Taylor $  26.10| Show Low 26.52 $ 3219 N/A
Taylor | $ 35.00

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Material Delivered

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

o
DESCRIPTION GUANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézrzggs P’:‘i‘gggg . o/: l')“ecgfeaassee
16) Rip Rap (36 inch minus) Delivered to Winslow Levee
Basalt A) 4,000 Tons $ 79.38| $ 49.00 $ 64.19 52.63 22%
Stone B) 4,000 Tons $ 49.00 $ 49.00
17) 2-SACK AB Slurry Delivered to:
Winslow A) 300 C.Y. $ 203.85 203.85 $ 203.85 207.10 -2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, -, 300C.Y. $ 195.17 $ 19517 | 187.58] 4%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 174.57 2%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 300C.Y. $ 174.57 $ 174.57 172.40 1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 300 C.Y. $ 186.50 $ 186.50 182.16 2%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 300 C.Y. $ 177.83 $ 177.83 172.40 3%
18) 2-SACK 3/8 in. Gravel Slurry
Winslow A) 500 C.Y. $ 201.68 $ 201.68 206.02 2%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - 500 C.Y. $ 193.01 $ 193.01| 186.50] 3%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 500 C.Y. $ 195.66 $ 195.66 174.57 12%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 500 C.Y. $ 172.40 $ 172.40 172.40 0%
Heber/Overgaard E) 500 C.Y. $ 184.33 $ 184.33 183.25 1%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 500 C.Y. $ 175.66 $ 175.66 172.40 2%
19) Portland Cement Concrete (Class S, 2,500 psi)
Winslow A) 50 C.Y. $ 228.79 $ 228.79 238.55 -4%
Holbrook, Joseph City, Sun Valley, - g, 50 C.Y. $ 220.11 $ 220.11 219.03 0%
Woodruff
Snowflake, Taylor, White Mtn Lakes C) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 204.93 -1%
Linden, Pinedale, Clay Springs D) 50 C.Y. $ 199.51 $ 199.51 200.60 -1%
Heber/Overgaard E) 50 C.Y. $ 211.44 $ 211.44 211.44 0%
Show Low, Pinetop-Lakeside F) 50 C.Y. $ 202.76 $ 202.76 200.60 1%

Delivery of Roadway Material

Brimhall Sand, Rock & Bldg.
Materials
PO Box 750
Snowflake, AZ 85937

W.W Clyde
P.O. Box 127
Taylor, AZ 85939

Perkins Aggregates, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste A
Show Low, AZ 85901

Perkins Cinders, Inc.
1950 E. Adams, Ste C
Show Low, AZ 85901

Schuck Develop.
PO Box 21120
Wickenburg, AZ 85358

Price Comparisons

DESCRIPTION COANTIES Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) Unit Price (Delivered) P’:‘i‘ézr;ggs P’:‘i‘;eerzg; :/r“ IIDnec:feaassee
20) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Heber/Overgaard| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 30.00 $§ 2250 20.30 11%
21) Delivery Only of County Specified Roadway Material
Hauling Location: Show Low| 5,000 Tons $ 15.00 9.00 $ 12.00 13.41 -11%
22) Hauling Cover Aggregate Material Per Ton Per Mile
Hauling Location: “Various | 5,000 Tons $ 6.00 $  6.00 #DIV/0!

All costs to include applicale taxes. The above bid shall be valid for a period of one humdred twenty (120) days.

Navajo County - For Official Use Only




Board of Supervisors Regular 4.b. 1. a.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Intergovernmental Agreement for the Town of Taylor For The Rail Road Grade Project in
District 111

Submitted For: William Flake, Assistant County Engineer
Submitted By: Donald Perkins, Flood Control Manager

Department:  Public Works
Presented By: Will Flake

Motion before the Board:

Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Taylor for their request for financial
assistance for the Rail Road Grade drainage project in the amount of $68,000.

Background:

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for Financial Assistance: Rail Road Grade Stormwater Drainage
Improvement Project

This Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the Town of Taylor and Navajo County Flood Control
District seeks to authorize the County to partner financially in the Rail Road Grade Stormwater Drainage
Improvement Project. Both the Town of Taylor and Navajo County Flood Control District share a mutual
interest in improving drainage within Freeman Park and along Papermill Road and Centennial Boulevard,
to mitigate the risk of future flooding.

The Town of Taylor formally requests financial assistance from the Navajo County Flood Control District
to help cover construction costs associated with the project. It is understood that the Town will retain full
responsibility for the design, procurement, permitting, and construction of the project.

The Town acknowledges that the County's sole obligation in this endeavor is to provide financial
assistance up to a maximum amount of $68,000.

The Public Works Department has reviewed the request and affirms that the project aligns with the goals
of the Flood Control District. They fully support the proposed improvements to enhance drainage and
reduce the potential for flooding.

Recommendation:

Staff Recommends approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for the Town of Taylor's Rail
Road Grade Project.

Fiscal Impact

Fiscal Year: 25
Budgeted Y/N: Y
Amount Requested: $68,000
Fiscal Impact:

Attachments



IGA Taylor Railroad Project

Key Map
Local with photo
Exhibit A

Inbox

Brandt Clark

Donald Perkins

Donald Perkins

Brandt Clark

Brandt Clark

Public Works Director

Donald Perkins

Public Works Director

Donald Perkins

Brandt Clark

Public Works Director

Brandt Clark

Form Started By: Donald Perkins
Final Approval Date: 03/04/2025

Reviewed By
William Flake
Donald Perkins
Donald Perkins
Brandt Clark
Brandt Clark
Melissa Buckley

Donald Perkins
Donald Perkins
Brandt Clark
Madhav Mundle
Brandt Clark

Form Review

Date

02/12/2025 05:04 PM
02/13/2025 05:18 PM
02/18/2025 07:51 AM
02/28/2025 02:45 PM
02/28/2025 02:46 PM
03/03/2025 10:28 AM
03/03/2025 01:29 PM
03/03/2025 01:30 PM
03/04/2025 09:56 AM
03/04/2025 10:50 AM
03/04/2025 11:58 AM
03/04/2025 12:13 PM
Started On: 02/11/2025 08:09 AM



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR
FLOOD CONTROL PROJECT FUNDING

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT is entered into as of March 11, 2025
("the Effective Date") by and between the Navajo County Flood Control District, a
special taxing district organized pursuant to Title 48, Chapter 21 of the Arizona Revised
Statutes ("NCFCD"), and the Town of Taylor.

1. Premises.

1.1 The parties are authorized to enter into intergovernmental agreements for joint or
cooperative action pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952.

1.2 The Town of Taylor recognizes that they have deficiencies of funds to pay
for flood control that is associated with installing a detention basin at
Foothills Blvd and Papermill Road, drainage control in Freeman Park and
conveyance under Centennial Blvd.

1.3  The Town of Taylor, has undertaken a project to install a drainage system
all throughout Freeman Park, with flows directed under Centennial Blvd,
and a Detention Basin at Foothills Blvd and Papermill Road called ("The
Rail Road Grade Project "), to address safety concerns, protect property,
caused by flooding through the area and connecting roads.

1.4  The NCFCD is authorized by A.R.S. § 48-3603(C) (3) to contract and join
with the Town of Taylor "in, constructing, flood control works, and
regulating floodplains."

1.5  The Town of Taylor has received a FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant,
which requires a 25% local match by Town of Taylor. The Board of
Directors of the NCFCD has determined that it is an appropriate use of
NCFCD funds to financially assist the Town of Taylor with costs required
for local match. This project is located along Papermill Road, Centennial
Blvd and Freeman Park. The Town of Taylor has requested a 50% cost-
share of the 25% required local match. The NCFCD's contribution will be
up to 50% cost-share up to, but not to exceed $68,000, subject to the terms
and conditions outlined in this Agreement.

2. The District's Obligations.

2.1 The NCFCD shall reimburse the Town of Taylor for eligible costs of the Project,
up to a maximum reimbursement of $68,000. Copies of paid invoices for the Project
shall be submitted to NCFCD for reimbursement, not to exceed $68,000. Eligible costs
are the actual expenses associated with costs for the Project. The Town of Taylor’s
administrative and other internal expenses are not eligible costs, nor are the expenses of



improvements not directly related to flood control (such as irrigation facilities,
landscaping, roads or recreational facilities). The NCFCD shall be solely responsible for
determining whether an expense is an eligible cost.

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.14

It is understood and agreed by the NCFCD that the Town of
Taylor's share of eligible costs may be paid from other funding
sources which may be available to the Town of Taylor, such as
federal or state grants. The availability of other funding sources
shall not reduce the NCFCD's share of eligible costs as provided in
Section 2.1.

Payment shall be made by the NCFCD within 30 days after receipt
of a complete reimbursement request. Reimbursement requests
shall be in writing, shall specify the costs in enough detail to
enable the District to determine whether they are eligible costs, and
shall include the certification of the Town Manager of the Town of
Taylor that the costs are eligible costs. The NCFCD, at its sole
discretion, shall determine if the reimbursement request is
complete and shall not reimburse for an incomplete request.

Upon reasonable notice of not less than 24 hours, the NCFCD or
its representatives may inspect and audit all books, papers and
other records pertaining to the Project and the Town of Taylor’s
obligations under this Agreement.

3. The Town of Tavlor's Obligations.

3.1 The Town of Taylor shall be solely responsible for the Project. The Town of
Taylor understands and agrees that the NCFCD’s sole participation and obligation with
respect to the Project shall be that of a funding source as described in Section 2.1. The
Project is not a NCFCD project, and the NCFCD is neither a partner nor a joint venture
with the Town of Taylor in connection with the Project. The Town of Taylor shall not
imply or represent to any consultant, contractor, or other party that the NCFCD holds any
responsibility or liability in connection with the Project, except as expressly outlined in

this Agreement.

3.1.1

As a condition of the funding to be provided by the NCFCD, the
NCFCD may review and comment on Project-related contracts,
scopes of work, construction plans and other Project documents.

3.2 The Town of Taylor covenants that it will diligently pursue the completion of the
Project without undue delay or interruption.

33 Upon completion of the Project, the Town of Taylor shall be solely responsible
for all construction, maintenance, repairs and operating expenses. The Town of



Taylor shall maintain in force comprehensive liability insurance adequate to
insure against all risks associated with the Project facilities.

4. Indemnification.

To the fullest extent permissible by law, the Town of Taylor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless the NCFCD and its officers, employees and agents from and against any
and all claims, actions, suits, liabilities, damages, losses and expenses arising out of the
design, procurement, permitting and construction of the Project or the subsequent
maintenance, repair or operation of the Project facilities

5. General.

5.1  This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date February 25, 2025 and
shall remain in effect until two years from the effective date.

5.2 Requests for reimbursement, payments and other communications relating to this
Agreement shall be sent to the intended recipient at the following address. Either
party may specify a different address by written notice to the other party:

If to the NCFCD: If to the TOWN OF TAYLOR:
William Flake, P.E., CFM Gus Lundberg
Navajo County Flood Control District Town Manager

Phone (928) 524-4114
(928) 243-
8840

William.Flake@navajocountyaz.gov gus@tayloraz.gov

5.3 In the event of any dispute arising out of this Agreement, the parties agree to
make a good faith attempt to informally resolve or mediate the dispute before
submitting the matter to arbitration pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. § 12-
1518.

5.4  Each party warrants that this Agreement has been duly authorized by its
governing body, which the officials executing this Agreement on its behalf have
been duly authorized to do so, and that when so executed this Agreement shall
constitute a valid and binding obligation of the parties.

5.5  The provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511 are incorporated herein by this reference.


mailto:William.Bess@navajocountyaz.gov

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with
respect to its subject matter, superseding any prior or contemporaneous
agreements, whether oral or written, concerning the same subject matter. This
Agreement may be amended only by a written document which expressly refers to
it and is executed with the same formality by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the parties have
executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

NAVAJO COUNTY FLOOD
CONTROL DISTRICT

By

Dawnafe Whitesinger Vice-Chair
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Melissa W. Buckley, Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY:

Brandt Clark, Deputy County Attorney
for the Flood Control District

TOWN OF TAYLOR

By

Shawn Palmer, Mayor

ATTEST:

Marcie Pawlik, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY:



Attorney for the Town of Taylor



1 I A -

:

T g <
N, /

202.22 0038 M \\D. ke
345.49 Ac

Exhibit 5 ‘

Casa Linda =
Eet crarnei1 1

N
202.22.016 Fettyom
58.62 hc (e Aascaser)
W
.
N
“
.
2 [y
oy
.
, ]
S ) < — I N
= Ranch Rd. lﬂ
- ““' ) croseing > = =
a2 o S " -

|

-

@
O

L )
N

'
Palomino Dr. s
Crossing D a {

s EREE - -
‘) E@ . Exhibit 3
p L S 3
. W N Q7 T¢
) )

0 500 1000 2000
?

[ Exhibit 2

I~/

SCALE: I" = 1000'

Exhibit 1: Proposed Project Features
and Key Map

Current Zone AE Floodplain (cyan lines)
Requested APE: (red polygons)




- Papermill - : = ~
T el ~ T -

) 1., 2 - 2 . - EFe | §
2 .

E ‘1:;,\7"4; 'Pl

Railroad Grade Project . Roads

w — 4 Project Area
2~ State\US Route, Interstate

Town of Taylor




W Papermill Rd & N Foothills Blvd N Centennial Blvd Crossing

Railroad Grade Projec
Town of Taylor




P@ Pox 158, 425 W. 9&;2%/114}(1(’/ RD
%'ag/&w HAvizona 85939
Phane (928) 536-7366 fax (928) 536-7027

L. ta %[Ow@ oy

February 1, 2025

Will Flake

Navajo County

PO Box 668
Holbrook, AZ 86025

RE: Flood Control Partnership with Railroad Grade Wash

Greetings Will

| want to bring up a project that we have discussed with the County for several years and
now are getting to a point where I'd like to get the IGA memorialized. In 2016, 2017 & 2018
Taylor received FEMA grants to address flood mitigation in three different areas throughout
town. We have partnered with County Flood Control to participate in the local match
requirements by these grants. The other projects the County partnered with were Airport
Wash and Pinedale Wash. The Airport Wash project included an underground storm drain
and curb, gutter and sidewalks on 700 West. Pinedale Wash project included installing two
detention basins around the Airport Industrial Park (behind TBS Waste and Kay Supply).

Our Railroad Grade project encompasses improved drainage all through Freeman Park with
drainage under Centennial Blvd. We are also installing a detention basin at Foothills and
Papermill Road. This project has experienced delays, but we are coming up on the end of
our period of performance. Our project budget is $546,203 with 75% federal funding
coming from FEMA. The 25% local match of $136,742 is the Town’s responsibility. In past
grants we have sought a 50/50 split with County Flood Control but have been told by your
predecessors that we could count on $50,000 for the Railroad Grade project.

Respectfully

= = Ty

(@ i
Gus Lur’1dberg

Town Manager

pﬁ‘ﬂ’? ::.



EXHIBIT A

Cost Estimate
Construction:
The Project costs are estimated as follows:
Federal-aid funds @ 75 % $409,461.00
Taylor, Az Required Match @ 25 % $136,742.00
Total $546,203.00



Board of Supervisors Regular 5. a.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Retention of Ball, Santin, & McLeran, P.L.C., Attorneys at Law for Walmart v. Navajo
County, TX-2024000400

Submitted For: Jason Moore, Deputy County Attorney
Submitted By: Jason Moore, Deputy County Attorney

Department:  County Attorney
Presented By: Jason Moore/Michael Montandon

Motion before the Board:

EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) for the Board to receive legal advice
from its attorney regarding hiring of outside legal counsel, specifically Jeffrey Messing and Jim Ball of
the firm Ball, Santin & McLeran, P.L.C., to represent Navajo County in Walmart's tax appeal
(TX-2024-000400) regarding the valuation of its property located in Taylor, Arizona.

Background:

Walmart filed a tax appeal in the Arizona Tax Court challenging the Assessor's valuation of Walmart's
property located in Taylor, AZ. Walmart is seeking a substantial reduction in the value of its property.

The firm the Assessor is recommending the Board hire is currently representing Maricopa County in
Walmart's tax appeals in that County. The County Attorney's office concurs with that decision to hire
outside legal counsel to the substantial resources Walmart brings to this litigation that Navajo County
lacks in-house. Navajo County can utilize the SAVE cooperative purchasing agreement both Maricopa
County and Navajo County are members of to retain the firm.

Recommendation:

The recommendation is to approve the Engagement Letter of Ball, Santin & McLeran and hire the firm to
represent Navajo County as co-counsel in TX-2024000400.

Attachments

Summons and Complaint

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Bryan Layton Jason Moore 02/27/2025 08:45 AM

Jason Moore (Originator) Jason Moore 02/27/2025 08:54 AM

Bryan Layton Melissa Buckley 03/04/2025 02:15 PM

Assessor Michael Montandon 03/04/2025 02:19 PM

County Attorney Brad Carlyon 03/04/2025 05:38 PM

Form Started By: Jason Moore Started On: 02/26/2025 04:29 PM

Final Approval Date: 03/04/2025



10
14l
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

MOONEY, WRIGHT,
MOORE & WiLHoOIT, PLLC
SCOTTSDALE, AZ

*24DEC 23 &

MOONEY, WRIGHT, MOORE & WILHOIT, PLLC
Paul Moore (No. 019912)

14301 North 87" Street, Suite 207

Scottsdale, Arizona 85260

Phone: (480) 615-7500

Fax: (480) 615-7504

Email: pmoore@mwmwlaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA
ARIZONA TAX COURT

WALMART, INC., a corporation (fka No. 1X2024-000400
WAL-MART, STORES, INC.),
Plaintiff, SUMMONS
VS.
NAVAJO COUNTY, (Property Tax)
Defendant. if you would like legal advice from & lawys
Contact the | R : at

THE STATE OF ARIZONA TO THE DEFENDANT:

NAVAJO COUNTY

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to appear and defend, within the
time applicable, in this action in this Court. If served within Arizona, you shall appear
and defend within 20 days after the service of the Summons and Complaint upon you,
exclusive of the day of service. If served out of the State of Arizona - whether by direct
service, by registered or certified mail, or by publication - you shall appear and defend
within 30 days after the service of the Summons and Complaint upon you is complete,
exclusive of the day of service. Where process is served upon the Arizona Director of
Insurance as an insurer's attorney to receive service of legal process against it in this state,
the insurer shall not be required to appear, answer or plead until expiration of 40 days
after date of such service upon the Director. Service by registered or certified mail
without the State of Arizona is complete upon receipt. Service by publication is complete
30 days after the date of first publication. Direct service is complete when made. Service

M10:53




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

MOONEY, WRIGHT,
MOORE & WiLHoIT, PLLC
SCOTTSDALE, AZ

upon the Arizona Motor Vehicle Superintendent is complete 30 days after filing the
Affidavit of Compliance and return receipt or Officer's Return. Rules 4, 4-1, 4-2 and 12
AR.C.P.; AR.S. §§ 20-22, 28-502 AND 28-503.

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that in case of your failure to appear and defend
within the time applicable, judgment by default may be rendered against you for the relief
demanded in the Complaint.

YOU ARE CAUTIONED that in order to appear and defend, you must file an
Answer or proper response in writing with the Clerk of this Court, accompanied by the
necessary filing fee, within the time required, and you are required to serve a copy of any
Answer or response upon the Plaintiffs’ attorney. Rules S and 10(d) A.R.C.P.; A.R.S.
§ 12-311.

Requests for reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities must be made
to the division assigned to the case by the party needing accommodation or his/her
counsel at least three (3) judicial days in advance of a scheduled proceeding. Requests for
an interpreter for persons with limited English proficiency must be made to the division
assigned to the case by the party needing the interpreter and/or translator or his/her
counsel at least ten (10) judicial days in advance of a scheduled court proceeding. Rule
2.5, Local Rules of Practice.

Request for reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities must be made
to the court by parties at least 3 working days in advance of a scheduled court proceeding.
Rule 4(b)(1)(F) A.R.C.P.

The name and address of Plaintiff’s attorney is:
MOONEY, WRIGHT, MOORE & WILHOIT, PLLC
14301 North 87" Street, Suite 207

Scottsdale, AZ 85260

(480) 615-7500

SIGNED AND SEALED this date:

By DEC 132024

S\ CLERK OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
) S.BARBA
DEPUTY CLERK




3 ) CLERK OF THE
1 | MOONEY, WRIGHT, MOORE & WILHOIT, PLLG=" /; 5. AT IOR COURT

Paul Moore (No. 019912)

Bart Wilhoit (No. 020064)

3 || 14301 North 87™ Street, Suite 207
Scottsdale, Arizona 85260

4 1| Phone: (480) 615-7500

5 | Email: pmoore@mwmwlaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

DEPUTY CLERK

6

; THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

8 IN THE ARIZONA TAX COURT

9 TX2024-000400

WALMART, INC., a corporation (fka No.
10 || WAL-MART STORES, INC)),
COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF
1 Plaintiff, APPEAL OF PROPERTY
12 VALUATION
V.

13
14 NAVAJO COUNTY, (Property Tax)
15 Defendant.
16
17 Pursuant to A.R.S. §§42-15104, 42-16201, and 42-16207 et seq., plaintiff,
18 WALMART, INC., a corporation (fka WAL-MART STORES, INC.), appeals to the
19 Arizona Tax Court the valuation of its real property for tax year 2025 as determined by the
20 Navajo County Assessor (“the Assessor”). In support of this Complaint and Notice of
01 Appeal, plaintiff alleges:
22 L
23 Plaintiff, WALMART, INC., owns legal and/or equitable title to real property in
24 Navajo County, State of Arizona, identified by Navajo County for tax year 2025 by
25 Assessor parcel number: 202-58-001, the “Subject Property”.
26

Mooxey, WRIGHT,
MoOORE & WiLsionr, PLLC

SCOTRDALE, ARIZONA




9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

MoONEY, WRIGHT,

MoOORE & WiLHorT, PLLC
SCOTRDALE, ARIZONA

II.

Defendant Navajo County is a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. Navajo
County is made a defendant to this action pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-16208. Pursuant to
AR.S. § 42-13051, the Assessor annually determines valuation of all property within
Navajo County that is subject to taxation, including the Subject Property. The Assessor
determined the valuations of the Subject Property for tax year 2025.

II.
The Assessor’s determinations of the 2025 full cash and limited property values of
the Subject Property are excessive.
IV.
This appeal is timely filed pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 42-16201.
V.

Pursuant to Arizona law, defendant Navajo County will assess, levy and seek to
collect property taxes from plaintiff for itself and for each taxing unit or district appearing
upon its rolls, based upon the values determined by the Assessor for tax year 2025.

VL

Upon information and belief, the property taxes that will be assessed against the
Subject Property for tax year 2025 will be based upon excessive full cash and limited
property values. As a result of these overvaluations, plaintiff will have to pay more taxes
than could legally be collected if the Subject Property had been valued properly. Therefore,
pursuant to A.R.S. §§42-16213 and 42-16214, plaintiff is entitled to have the 2025 tax roll
corrected to reflect the correct full cash values, and to receive a refund of any taxes levied,

assessed and paid based on the excessive 2025 values.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

MOONEY, WRIGHT,
MOoRE & Winnotr, PLLC
SCOTTDALE, ARIZON A

VIIL

For tax year 2025, the full cash value of the Subject Property set by the Assessor is
excessive and inequitable because it failed to correctly perform standard and statutory
appraisal methods and techniques. With respect to standard appraisal methods, when
correctly valued pursuant to the cost, income and market approaches, the reconciled market
value of the Subject Property is less than the full cash value set by the Assessor.

VIIL.

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-13301, a reduction in the 2025 full cash value of the Subject
Property will require a reduction in its 2025 limited property value and may also require a
reduction in its limited property value for subsequent tax years. The calculation of the
limited property value is a ministerial act and the limited property value changes by
operation of law.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff requests that this Court:

1. Determine and fix the full cash and limited property values of the Subject
Property for tax year 2025;

2. Order defendant to determine and fix the limited property values of the
Subject Property for tax years subsequent to tax year 2025 in accordance with A.R.S. §42-
13301, et seq.;

3. Render judgment that plaintiff have and recover from defendant refunds in
the amount of any excess taxes paid based on the 2025 full cash and limited property values
of the Subject Property as determined by this Court, together with interest thereon at the
legal rate from the date of payment by plaintiff until refunded by defendant;

4. Render judgment that plaintiff have and recover from defendant refunds in

the amount of any excess taxes paid based on any reductions in the limited property values




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

Mooy, WRIGHT,
MoORE & WiHor, PLILC

S4OTTIDALE, ARIZONA

of the Subject Property for tax years subsequent to tax year 2025, together with interest
thereon at the legal rate from the date of payment by plaintiff until refunded by defendant;

5. In the event Navajo County sets the 2026 full cash value of the Subject
Property at a value higher than that determined by the Court for tax year 2025, then set the
higher full cash value of the Subject Property for 2026 pursuant to A.R.S. §42-16002 at the
same value the Court determines herein for tax year 2025, without prejudice to plaintiff’s
rights under Section 42-16002 to appeal the full cash value of any of the Subject Property
for tax year 2026;

6. Award plaintiff its attorneys’ fees and expert witness expenses incurred
pursuant to A.R.S. §12-348, as well as its taxable costs; and

7. Grant such further relief as the Court may deem proper.

DATED this 13th day of December, 2024.

MOONEY, WRI HT,XZ:RE&WILHOIT, PLLC

Paul Moore
Attorney for Plaintiff




Board of Supervisors Regular 5. b.
Meeting Date: 03/11/2025

Title: Reconvene Executive Session Walmart v. Navajo County, TX-2024000400
Submitted By: Melissa Buckley, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Assessor
Presented By: Jason Moore/Michael Montandon

Motion before the Board:

RECONVENE: Consideration of hiring of outside legal counsel, specifically Jeffrey Messing and Jim
Ball of the firm Ball, Santin & McLeran, P.L.C., to represent Navajo County in Walmart's tax appeal
(TX-2024-000400) regarding the valuation of its property located in Taylor, Arizona.

Background:

After the Executive Session, the Board of Supervisors will vote on wether or not to hire outside legal
counsel regarding this tax appeal.

Recommendation:

The recommendation is to approve the Engagement Letter of Ball, Santin & McLeran and hire the firm to

represent Navajo County as co-counsel in TX-2024000400.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
Jason Moore Jason Moore 02/28/2025 03:49 PM
Form Started By: Melissa Buckley Started On: 02/28/2025 01:22 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/28/2025



	Agenda
	AI_1000081_Draft Minues
	       ATT_2.25.2025 DRAFT Minutes
	       ATT_2.26.2025 DRAFT Minutes
	AI_1000085_Task 3 Winslow Levee Survey No. B23-02-015 Amendment No. 1
	       ATT_Amendment No. 1
	AI_1000086_Juvenile Diversion Program No. B23-01-003 Amendment No. 2
	       ATT_Amendment No. 2
	       ATT_Consent - County Attorney's Office
	       ATT_Consent - Contractor
	AI_1000080_Sentinel - Appendix A to Contract
	       ATT_Cisco Addendum A to Contract
	AI_1000090_DEM PC Appointment March 2025
	AI_1000079_Amendment of Ordinance 01-19 Outdoor Fire Ordinance
	       ATT_Amended DRAFT 
	OUTDOOR FIRE ORDINANCE

	       ATT_Draft Ordinance with Tracked Changes
	AI_1000084_Contract #B24-12-013 Employee Benefits Consultant
	       ATT_Evaluation Results
	Evaluation Bid Tab

	       ATT_Contract
	4. Compensation and Method of Payment.
	I. IN GENERAL
	II. CONFIDENTIALITY REQUIREMENTS
	IV. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE
	V. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY
	VI. TERMINATION
	VII. MISCELLANEOUS


	       ATT_Offer Form
	AI_1000091_B25-01-010 Supply of Various Roadway Materials
	       ATT_Bid Tab
	Bid Tab E  (2)

	       ATT_Brimhall Contract
	Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid Tab E  (2)


	       ATT_Perkins Aggregates Contract
	Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid Tab E  (2)


	       ATT_Perkins Cinders Contract
	Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid Tab E  (2)


	       ATT_Schuck Development Contract
	Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid Tab E  (2)


	       ATT_WW Clyde Contract
	Bid Tab.pdf
	Bid Tab E  (2)


	AI_1000068_Intergovernmental Agreement for the Town of Taylor For The Rail Road Grade Project in District III 
	       ATT_IGA Taylor Railroad Project
	       ATT_Key Map
	       ATT_Local with photo
	Railroad Grade Project.pdf
	Railroad Grade Project Photo Exhibit.pdf

	       ATT_Exhibit A
	IGA Letter Rail Road Grade.pdf
	IGA Exhabit A

	AI_1000089_Retention of Ball, Santin, & McLeran, P.L.C., Attorneys at Law for Walmart v. Navajo County, TX-2024000400
	       ATT_Summons and Complaint
	AI_1000093_Reconvene Executive Session Walmart v. Navajo County, TX-2024000400

